
2323 Grand Avenue · Des Moines ·Iowa 50312-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 ·Fax: 515-725-7882 
www.ialottery.com 

AGENDA 

IOWA LOTTERY BOARD 
December 13, 2013 

10:30 a.m. 

I. Call to Order 
a. Approval ofMinutes 

II. Quarterly Reports 
a. Financial 

i. Audit Rep01t 
b. Marketing 
c. Secmity 

Terry E. Branstad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds · Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich · Chief Executive Officer 

i. Administrative Rule Revision 
d. Legislative 

III. Building Report 

IV. Fiscal Policies 

v. DAS Report 

VI. Accounting Software RFP 

VII. Best New Instant Game 

VIII. CEO Industry Update 
a. IGOV Budget presentation 

IX. Adjournment 

If you require the assistance of auxiliary aids or services to participate in or attend the meeting because of a disability, please 
call our ADA coordinator at 515-725-7864, or if you are hearing impaired, call Relay TIY at 1-800-735-2942. 



MINUTES 
IOWA LOTTERY BOARD 

September 24, 2013 

The Iowa Lottery Board convened at 10:30 a.m., Board Chairperson Mike Klappholz presiding. 

Board members participating: Mary Junge, Herman Richter, Matt McDermott, Deb Burnight, and Mike 
Klappholz. Mike Fitzgerald joined the meeting after initial roll call was taken. 

Lottery staff present: Terry Rich, CEO; Larry Loss, EVP; Brenda Nye, CFO; Mary Neubauer, Vice 
President External Relations; Teri Wood TeBockhorst, Vice President Marketing; Molly juffernbruch, 
Vice President General Counsel; Steve Bogle, Vice President Security; jack Schroeder, Vice President 
Operations and Systems; Jamie Becker, Sr Project Director/Board Secretary, & Dave Van Compernolle, 
Assistant Attorney General. 

Others present: Dave Berger, Scientific Games; Kristi Kielhorn, Iowa House Republican Caucus Staff; 
Mary Braun, Iowa House Democrat Caucus Staff; Rod Boshart, Cedar Rapids Gazette. 

Chairperson Klappholz called the meeting to order and announced that the meeting would be held via 
teleconference in accordance with Iowa Code section 21.8. 

Junge moved to approve conducting the electronic meeting via teleconference. McDermott seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Burnight moved to approve minutes of june board meeting. Richter seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

MONTHLY REPORTS 

FINANCIAL 
Brenda Nye stated that the financial report covers three areas: Final FY13 Financials, FY14 Financials 
through August and the FY13 Out-of-State Travel Summary. Nye stated that the final FY13 
Performance Measures indicate that proceeds to the state for the year were a record $84.9 million 
exceeding the previous high of $80.9 million in FY2006. Sales for the year totaled over $339.3 million, 
the fourth straight year of higher sales. Also, for the first time ever, prizes to players exceeded $200 
million. A five-year comparison has been included in the packet, comparing FY2009 through FY2013. 

The FY14 Performance Measures show comparisons to budget and to the prior 5-year average. 
Through August, sales are nearly 20% ahead of budget and 23% ahead of the 5-year average. 
Proceeds are nearly 30% ahead of budget and nearly 21% ahead of the 5-year average. 

In the Out-of-State Travel Summary for FY13, there were a total of 20 trips. Nye noted that the costs of 
trips to the same location can vary due to reasons such as free registration for one and not others or 
one person may have had a rental car expense while another did not. All out-of-state travel follows an 
approval process that includes CEO approval before the travel occurs and posting to a public website 
with actual costs after the travel occurs. 

Junge inquired about specific cost variances, such as Mary Neubauer's NASPL expenses being less than 
the others who attended the same conference. Nye responded stating that due to a familyemergency, 
Mary Neubauer left the conference early and therefore wouldn't have as many meal and hotel 
expenses. Junge then asked about the World Lottery Summit and why Larry Loss' expenses were far 

1 



less than jack Schroeder's expenses. Rich responded stating that Larry's registration was free, while 
jack's was not. Finally, Junge inquired as to why the total cost of the US Online Gaming Law Forum was 
more than any other travel expense. Rich responded stating that registration was high for that forum, 
but felt it was an important event for the lottery's legal counsel to attend due to the discussions on 
online gaming. Junge asked to see a breakdown of the expenses for the US Online Gaming Law Forum. 

MARKETING 
Teri Wood updated the board on the marketing efforts and initiatives. Wood stated that the 
Summercash promotion ran from july 15 through September 15, for a total of 8 weeks. This was a VIP 
Club promotion where members could win one of 40 cash prizes, that totaled $250,000. Summercash 
was our first VIP Club promotion since transitioning the club back to the lottery. It received over 
277,000 entries, which beat our goal of250,000. Wood added that the VIP Club currently has over 
37,000 members. 

Wood went on to say that the current promotion, Tail Gator, runs through November 4"'. Tail Gator is 
also a VIP Club promotion and members can enter a Tail Gator scratch ticket for a chance to win one of 
nine ultimate fan packages to the November 23rd game of their choice at one of the following football 
games: Iowa, Iowa State or UNJ. The package is valued at over $500. 

On the heels ofSummercash, the Halloween Millionaire Raffie game launched. The raffle games is 
being offered in six other states and will run from September 23'd through midnight October 31, 
Halloween night. There will be a minimum of two $1 million dollar prizes given away in the 7 
participating states. If a state doesn't have a million dollar winner, a prize of $50,000 will be awarded 
to someone who bought a ticket in that state. In Iowa, current total sales are $7 60 but sales for the 
states that are online total $750,950. 

The lottery's holiday promotion, Gifts Galore, will launch October 2 and run through january 13. This 
is another VIP Club promotion and prizes will consist of cash and Sony products. Wood also noted that 
in November the lottery will be launching a Powerball promotion in cooperation with the pro football 
Hall of Fame. Wood stated that another planned project in january will be specifically targeted to the 
Iowa Veteran's Trust Fund initiative. 

SECURITY 
Steve Bogle stated the june, july and August security reports were included in the packet. Bogle then 
stated Mary Neubauer had emailed the Board a copy of the Iowa Code 99G.27 regarding lottery retail 
licenses and the Iowa Administrative Code 531-12.12(4) Suspension and Revocation of a License. 
Bogle wanted to share with the Board a situation that had not been anticipated when the rules were 
written. The situation Bogle was referring to is that a retailer self-reported to the lottery that one of its 
clerks, who was under 21, sold herself a lotto ticket. This is a violation of the State Code and the 
retailer reported this event to the lottery. Bogle stated that he had talked with the legal counsel of the 
retailer regarding how Iowa Code 99G.27(1) gives the lottery discretion in suspending a license. 
However, the Administrative Code states that when a retailer sells a ticket to an underage player and 
the lottery can substantiate the claim the lottery "shall" suspend the lottery retailer's license for 7 
days. Bogle stated that the lottery has done that in other cases where lottery security conducted the 
investigation and the retailer had not self-reported the incident. Bogle added that there was an 
investigation for this case, as well, even though it was self-reported and the clerk admitted to the 
action. Bogle went on to say that the disciplinary action felt awkward since the retailer had shown 
integrity by reporting the violation. Bogle asked the Board to provide some feedback on whether they 
thought it would be beneficial and fair to make a revision to the Administrative Code that would allow 
the lottery some discretion in these types of cases. 

2 



Deb Burnight asked what the real liability is to a retailer who receives a seven day suspension. Bogle 
stated that it's unique to each retailer, depending on lottery sales and if there is a large jackpot at the 
time. Rich stated that retailers get 6% of sales and if there is a big jackpot run, it could be a 
considerable amount of money and stated that he provide a dollar range for that particular retailer to 
the Board for their reference. 

Richter added that a situation like this is detrimental to the retailer's reputation, as well. Klappholz 
commented that a police officer has discretion on giving a ticket to someone and since this retailer self
reported it's a good indicator that the person who runs that operation makes sure the rules are being 
followed. Klappholz went on to say that if an investigation uncovers wrongdoing that's a different 
matter. 

Matt McDermott pointed out that it's important to in cent this type of behavior of self-reporting, where 
people are mindful and reporting mistakes. McDermott stated the he believes that either the 
Administrative Code needs to be changed to comply with the discretionary piece in 99G.2 7(1) or some 
broader revision that perhaps rewards people, or at least punishes them less, if they self-report. 

Burnight and Richter concurred with McDermott's statement. 

Rich pointed out that the next steps would be to write up the proposed changes to the Administrative 
Rules and bring to the Board for approval at the next meeting. It would then be taken to the 
Legislative approval process. Bogle thanked the Board members and asked that any additional 
feedback be sent to him and added, based on the Board's comments, the Board should anticipate a 
proposed revision at the next board meeting. 

Mike Fitzgerald announced that he has joined the meeting via teleconference. 

OPERATIONS 
jack Schroeder reported that on September 9, the Lottery released a document for public broadcast of 
the requirements for the headquarters location project for the Iowa Lottery. This document states that 
all responses are to be sent to Ben Brackett of Department of Administrative Services (DAS) by 
September 27. Ben will serve as the lottery's point of contact. Schroeder stated that the lottery is 
currently in Phase I and expect to be in Phase I through the end of 2013. The board will be updated on 
any new information, as it becomes available. 

McDermott moved to approve the monthly reports. Burnight seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 
Mary Neubauer stated in regards to the Administrative Rule change that Steve Bogle addressed, she 
and Molly juffernbruch wanted to point out that in addition to the Board approval there would also be 
a public hearing for that process. It is likely that comments made by the Board at this meeting would 
be read as comments into the hearing. The Public Comment Hearing and the Board approval would be 
required before the change would make it to the Legislative process. 

Neubauer then moved on to discuss two proposals regarding online gaming that have been introduced 
in Congress. The first is from U.S Rep. Peter King, a Republican from New York. He would allow full 
scale wagering on the internet and establish federal licensing and regulation under the U.S. Treasury 
Department. The second bill that's been introduced is from U.S. Rep joe Barton, a Republican from 
Texas. His bill is called the Internet Poker Freedom Act and would only allow internet poker and 
establish an Office of Internet Poker Oversight within the Department of Commerce. Neubauer stated 
that the lottery industry continues to watch the status of these online gaming bills and that the Iowa 

3 



Lottery continues to believe that online gaming is a states' rights issue and decisions should be left to 
each state. 

Neubauer then addressed an issue associated with lottery proceeds for veteran's causes. She stated 
that since 2008 the lottery has been issuing games to benefit veterans and their families through the 
Iowa Veteran's Trust Fund and every year since then the lottery has received numerous requests for a 
game that benefits other causes. Neubauer stated that the lottery has repeatedly informed everyone in 
the process that it believes that if it were to create more games to benefit additional causes, the 
Veteran's Trust Fund and its revenues would be impacted. Neubauer stated that Eastern Iowa Honor 
Flights contacted their local legislator requesting that the lottery produce games to benefit their 
organization. Neubauer spoke with the representative and pointed out that the lottery already 
produces games that benefit the veteran's causes and Easter Iowa Honor Flights would be an 
additional, but different, veteran's cause. Neubauer also told the representative that a change in law 
would be required and that the lottery felt it couldn't raise funds for this cause without affecting 
revenues. Neubauer went on to point outthat the lottery has been contacted by several organizations 
wanting to do games over the years. That list includes Firefighers, MDA,l Special Olympics, Keep Iowa 
Beautiful, United Way and many others. Neubauer feels this is a compliment to the lottery because the 
organizations recognize the lottery's success but noted that the lottery is required to file a fiscal note 
each year that addresses the financial impact of the pending legislation. The lottery's response is 
always the same in that it's not possible to add new games without impacting revenue to the state. 

CONTRACT EXTENSION - Trilix 
Teri Wood stated that the lottery entered into an agreement with Trilix Marketing Group in 2011 for 
the purposes of marketing research. This agreement allowed the lottery to extend the agreement for 
up to four one-year periods. The lottery had previously exercised two of the four one-year options. 
Wood requested the Board's approval to exercise option three of the four one-year options, extending 
the agreement through December 31, 2014 with the same terms and conditions in effect. 

Junge moved to approve the contract extension with Trilix. Burnight seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

CEO UPDATE 
Rich stated that the lottery had a great and historical year . Rich stated that the budget Brenda Nye 
was about to present set the expectations to not overpromise. Rich said he feels the next year will be 
another good year but noted that the industry numbers show that scratch tickets are starting to level 
off or go flat. Rich wanted to recognize that, in addition to Powerball, the Iowa Lottery's Game Book 
was a big success and selected as one of two finalists for Instant-Scratch Game of The Year in North 
America by NASPL. The winner will be announced the following Thursday at the NASPL conference. 

Richter commended Rich and the staff on another job well done. 

2015BUDGET 

Nye stated the FY15 proposed budget is included in the packet. Last September, the Board approved a 
preliminary FY15 budget when the governor requested that a two year budget be prepared. The 
lottery has updated that budget based on FY13 actual expenses and new information. The main 
changes are the elimination of Interest expense because the bonds on the current building were paid 
off in FY13. Also, we have included $3.5 million in the budget for building needs. The lottery had 
previously budgeted $1.6 million in payroll expense to account for the new Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) #68 related to unfunded pension liability. At that time, the State Auditor's 
office believed that the recording of that expense would affect our proceeds. After further discussion 

4 



and analysis, it was concluded that the expense will not affect proceeds and therefore will be 
eliminated from the budget. 

Nye stated that one other item that changed from the preliminary budget approval was for 
professional fees. Previously the lottery used a third party for the VIP club. The expense related to 
that, nearly $2 million, was included in Prize expense. Beginning in FY14, the VIP club is housed 
internally. $1.2 million was left in prize expense, and professional fees were increased by $300,000 to 
handle additional costs that may be incurred such as web hosting and prize fulfillment. By bringing 
the VIP in-house, the lottery expects to save approximately $500,000 annually. 

McDermott asked about the equipment change and Nye stated that $20,000 was added for software 
needs to keep up with demands and according to the state accounting system, software is classified as 
equipment. McDermott then asked about spike in the FY14 equipment category and Nye responded 
that in FY14 there were specific needs that were addressed such as servers and PC replacements. 
However, some of those costs were covered in FY13. Nye added the spike is mostly due to servers. 

Junge commented that she had a lengthy phone conversation with Brenda to address many questions 
on the budget and the she was very satisfied with all the answers given by Brenda. 

Richter moves to approve the FY15 budget. Junge seconded. Motion carries unanimously. 

Rich wanted to add a final note about budgets, stating that two budgets are approved by the Board 
each year and the budget the Board just approved will be entered into the state's accounting system. 
Once the Legislature determines salary budgets, during a 2014 session, a final budget will be 
presented next june to the Board. 

Burnight moved to adjourn and McDermott seconded. Motion carries unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at 11:10 am. 

5 



IOWA LOTTERY 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

FY 2014 

I JUL 
I Month I 

I AUG I SEP I OCT I I I NOV I DEC I JAN I FEB I MAR I APR I MAY I JUN I 

Gross Sales Budget'14 21,480,287 23,387,161 21,894,427 22,749,084 25,139,749 24,001,852 24,352,692 25,533,435 29,11 1,897 25,298,981 27,014 ,412 23,036,023 
5-yearav. 20,836.440 22,686,157 21.238.166 22.067,206 24,386,214 23,282,424 23.622.747 24,768,100 28.239.301 24.540,673 26.204.685 22.345,545 
Actual'14 26.045,310 27,668.618 26.044,760 24,595,516 

Prize Expense Bud~t '14 12,600,256 13,718,820 12,843,188 13,344,527 58.66% 1) 14,746,882 14,079,396 14,285,197 14,977,817 17,076,929 14,840.287 15,846,552 13,512,846 
5-year av. 12.342,598 12,972.723 12,388,357 12,786,810 57.94% 2) 13,663,667 14.175,858 14,229,622 15,011,692 16,099,572 14,422,795 15.136,777 12,986,412 
Actual '14 15,942,444 15,944,936 15.424,112 14,558,510 59.19% 3) 

Operating Expenses Budget'14 580,184 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,489,947 924,193 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,489,947 924,193 1,816,860 
5-year av. 551,107 795.468 903.895 942,875 980.401 929,762 836,710 892,337 872,587 947,155 1,028,017 1,661,642 
Actual'14 510,053 946,787 1,032.424 1.338,916 

Proceeds to General Fund Budget '14 4,771,655 4,780,594 4,408,678 4,178,015 5,339,406 4,933,745 5,021,157 5,315,341 6,206,919 4,813,324 5,806,480 3,922,593 
5-yearav. 4,870.293 5.458,740 4,796,504 5.415,740 6,703,588 4,845,621 5.409,546 5,431,812 7,325,740 6,017,791 6,500,545 4,561,737 
Actual'14 5,818,399 6,789,813 6.463.986 6,149,653 

Proceeds to Veterans Trust Budget '14 133,453 482,971 301,434 166,950 140,083 142,482 227,620 354,551 368,6n 206,227 154,877 120,675 
5-yearav. 127,700 462.152 288,440 159.754 134,044 136,340 217,808 339,267 352,785 197,338 148,201 115.474 
Actual'14 163,182 422.439 83,623 47,564 

Total Proceeds Budget'14 4,905,108 5,263,565 4,710,112 4,344,965 5,479,489 5,076,227 5,248,777 5,669,892 6,575,596 5,019,551 5,961 ,357 4,043,268 
5-year av. 4,997,993 5,920,892 5,084,944 5,575,494 6,837,632 4 ,981,961 5,627.354 5,771,079 7,678,525 6,215,129 6.648.746 4,677,211 
Actual'14 5,981,581 7,212,252 6,547.609 6,197,217 

I YEAR TO DATE I 
Gross Sales Budget '14 21,480,287 44,867,448 66,761,875 89,510,959 114,650,708 138,652,560 163,005,252 188,538,687 217,650,584 242,949,565 269,963,977 293,000,000 

5-yearav. 20.836,440 43,522,597 64,760,763 86,827,969 20.19% 4) 111,214,183 134.496.607 158,119,354 182,887,454 211,126,755 235,667.428 261.872,1 13 284,217,658 
Actual ' 14 26.045,310 53,713,928 79.758.688 104,354.204 16.58% 5) 

Prize Expense Budget'14 12,600.256 26,319,076 39,162.264 52,506,791 58.66% 1) 67,253,673 81 ,333,069 95,618,266 110,596,083 127,673,012 142,513,299 158,359,851 171,872,697 
5-year av. 12,342,598 25,315,321 37,703,678 50,490,488 58.15% 2) 64,154,155 78,330,013 92,559,635 107,571,327 123.670.899 138,093,694 153.230.471 166.216,883 
Actual'14 15,942,444 31,887,380 47.311.492 61,870,002 59.29% 3) 

Operating Expenses Budget '14 580,184 1,626,529 2,672,874 4,162,821 5,087,014 6,133,359 7,179,704 8,226,049 9,272,394 10,762,341 11,686,534 13,503,394 
5-yearav. 551,107 1,346.575 2.250.470 3.193,345 4,173,746 5.103,508 5,940.218 6,832.555 7,705.142 8.652.297 9.680.314 11.238,670 
Actual'14 510,053 1.456,840 2.489.264 3.828,180 

Proceeds to General Fund Budget '14 4,771 ,655 9,552.249 13,960,927 18,138,942 23,478,348 28,412,093 33,433,250 38,748,591 44,955,510 49,768,834 55,575,314 59,497,907 
5-yearav. 4.870,293 10,329,033 15,125,537 20,541,277 27,244,865 32,090,486 37,500,032 42,931,844 50,257,584 56,275.375 62,775,920 67,352,481 
Actual '14 5,818,399 12,608,212 19,072,198 25,221,851 

Proceeds to Veterans Trust Budget'14 133,453 616,424 917,858 1,084,808 1,224,891 1,367,373 1,594,993 1,949,544 2,318,221 2 ,524,448 2,679,325 2,800,000 
5-yearav. 127,700 589,852 878,292 1.038,046 1,172,090 1,308,430 1,526.238 1,865,505 2.218.290 2,415.628 2,563,829 2,679,303 
Actual'14 163,182 585,621 669.244 716,808 

Total Proceeds Budget'14 4,905,108 10,168,673 14,878,785 19,223,750 24,703,239 29,779,466 35,028,243 40,698,135 47,273,731 52.293.282 58,254,639 62.297,907 
5-yearav. 4,997,993 10,918,885 16,003,829 21,579,323 20.20%4) 28.416,955 33.398.916 39,026.270 44,797,349 52.475,874 58,691 ,003 65,339,749 70,031 ,784 
Actual'14 5,981,581 13,193,833 19,741,442 25,938,659 34.93%5) 

1) Budget FY14 Prize Payout 
2) Actual 5-year average Prize Payout 
3) Actual FY14 Prize Payout 
4) Actual FY14 compared to Actual 5-year average 
5)Actual FY14 compared to Budget FY14 



2323 Grand Avenue· Des ~1oines ·Iowa 50312-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 · Fax: 515-725-7882 
www.ialottery.com 

DATE: October 15, 2013 

TO: 

FROM: 

Board Members of the Iowa Lottery Authority 

Brenda Nye, Chief Financial Officer bN 

Terry E. Branstad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds · Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich · Chief Executive Olficer 

Attached are the financial statements for September 2013. During 
September, we had revenue of $26,045,253. This sales level resulted in 
$6,463,986 of proceeds payable to the State General Fund and $83,623 
of proceeds payable to the Veterans Trust Fund. 

Attachments 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

September 30, 2013 

Proceeds to Iowa Plan 

Proceeds to CLEAN fund 

Proceeds to Special Appropriations 

Proceeds to Gambler's Treatment Program 

Proceeds to the State General Fund: 
Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transfened 
Payable 

Proceeds to the Veterans Trust Fund: 

Total 

Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year2014 

Transfened 
Payable 

$1,231' 172,262 

0 
19,072,198 

$13,396,520 

0 
669,244 

$170,318,439 

$35,894,355 

$13,773,572 

15,732,208 

1,250,244,460 

14,065,764 

$1,500,028,798 



lOW A LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Month ended Month ended Year-to-date Year-to-date 
September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012 September 30,2013 September 30, 2012 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Instant-scratch ticket sales $13,978,725 $13,694,847 $45,001,498 $43,661,094 
Pick 3 sales 557,563 547,394 1,689,282 1,672,633 
Powerball sales 7,531,376 5,798,367 21,126,274 18,061,737 
Mega Millions sales 1,370,385 1,171,348 3,297,275 3,586,121 
Hot Lotto sales 718,807 817,760 2,717,375 2,613,865 
Pick4 sales 257,109 237,802 766,930 723,790 
$100,000 Cash Game sales 353,732 354,483 1,115,329 1,099,523 
Pull-tab sales 1,277,063 1,276,936 4,044,725 4,152,566 
Application fees 250 350 925 950 
Other revenue 243 611 4,665 6,108 

Total operating revenues 26,045,253 23,899,898 79,764,278 75,578,387 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Scratch ticket prize expense 8,971,848 8,719,390 29,124,470 27,857,316 
Pick 3 prize expense 330,958 324,637 990,741 989,290 
Powerball prize expense 3,695,557 2,815,755 10,317,292 8,839,036 

Mega Millions prize expense 684,197 592,434 1,639,497 1,814,573 
Hot Lotto prize expense 349,859 398,847 1,314,380 1,225,390 
Pick 4 prize expense 150,081 141,246 445,233 425,064 
$100,000 Cash Game prize expense 189,037 189,937 596,573 588,260 

Pull-tab prize expense 798,742 800,838 2,537,093 2,600,569 
VIP Club prize expense 245,000 160,714 245,000 491,947 
Promotional prize expense 8,833 8,275 101,211 24,385 
Advertising/publicity 758,711 446,494 1,890,297 1,560,443 
Retailer compensation expense 1,674,129 1,514,663 5,076,239 4,817,803 
Ticket expense 279,119 235,085 853,221 694,646 

Vendor compensation expense 538,834 454,240 1,626,375 1,509,868 
Salary and benefits 784,110 717,686 2,458,937 2,368,326 
Travel 27,676 30,878 108,706 105,481 

Supplies 14,294 4,735 43,322 30,186 
Printing 65 767 5,992 1,079 
Postage 276 259 809 1,020 

Communications 14,070 12,625 35,027 32,992 
Rentals 23,056 24,705 75,916 75,075 
Utilities 8,210 6,661 21,715 21,427 
Professional fees 6,948 17,829 20,738 25,794 
Vending machine maintenance 47,020 44,691 141,123 134,200 
Outside services and repairs 25,476 17,910 109,499 67,322 

Data processing 7,380 5,929 22,426 14,070 
Equipment 16,561 17,052 34,171 52,463 
Reimbursement to other 

state agencies 30,780 27,526 86,177 82,380 
Depreciation 24,467 20,283 73,147 60,848 

Other 9,160 4,778 17,682 11,932 
MUSL administrative expense 4,434 9,263 13,301 9,263 

Total operating expenses 19,718,888 17,766,132 60,026,310 56,532,448 

Operating income 6,326,365 6,133,766 19,737,968 19,045,939 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Month ended 
September 30, 2013 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Proceeds deposited to: 
State General Fund 
Veterans Trust Fund 

Interest Income 
Interest expense 

Net non-operating 

revenues (expenses) 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 
of period 

Net position, end 
of period 

(6,463,986) 
(83,623) 

8,054 
0 

(6,539,555) 

(213,190) 

6,502,117 

$6,288,927 

Month ended 
September 30, 2012 

(6,055,941) 
(101,538) 

48,559 
(3,010) 

(6,111,930) 

21,836 

5,384,772 

$5,406,608 

Year-to-date Year-to-date 
September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012 

(19,072,198) 
(669,244) 

8,222 
0 

(19,733,220) 

4,748 

6,284,179 

$6,288,927 

(18,054,228) 
(820,592) 

48,559 
(9,030) 

(18,835,291) 

210,648 

5,195,960 

$5,406,608 



) 

2323 Grand Avenue· Des ~loines · Iowa 50311-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 · Fax: 515-725-7881 
www.ialottery.com 

DATE: November 15, 2013 

TO: Board Members of the Iowa Lottery Authority 

FROM: Brenda Nye, Chief Financial Officer ~ 

Terry E. Branstad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds · Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich · Chief Executive Officer 

Attached are the financial statements for October 2013. During October, 
we had revenue of $24,596,177. This sales level resulted in $6,149,653 
of proceeds payable to the State General Fund and $47,564 of proceeds 
payable to the Veterans Trust Fund. 

Attachments 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

October 31, 2013 

Proceeds to Iowa Plan 

Proceeds to CLEAN fund 

Proceeds to Special Appropriations 

Proceeds to Gambler's Treatment Program 

Proceeds to the State General Fund: 
Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year2014 

Transferred 
Payable 

Proceeds to the Veterans Trust Fund: 

Total 

Prior to Fiscal Year 20 14 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transferred 
Payable 

$1,231,172,262 

19,072,199 
6,149,653 

$13,396,520 

669,244 
47,564 

$170,318,439 

$35,894,355 

$13,773,572 

15,732,208 

1,256,394,114 

14,113,328 

$1,506,226,016 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2013 

Month ended Month ended Year-to-date Year~to-dnte 

October 31,2013 October 31,2012 October 31, 2013 October 31, 2012 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Instant-scratch ticket sales $15,012,320 $16,066,420 $60,013,818 $59,727,514 
Pick 3 sales 580,792 569,486 2,270,074 2,242,118 
Powerball sales 5,088,443 4,631,003 26,214,716 22,692,741 
Mega Millions sales 1,161,481 1,132,618 4,458,756 4,718,739 
Hot Lotto sales 754,760 926,568 3,472,135 3,540,433 
Pick 4 sales 275,661 254,893 1,042,591 978,683 
$100,000 Cash Game sales 377,933 391,346 1,493,262 1,490,869 
Pull-tab sales 1,344,126 1,506,381 5,388,851 5,658,948 
Application fees 200 975 1,125 1,925 
Other revenue 461 306 5,126 6,414 

Total operating revenues 24,596,177 25,479,996 104,360,454 101,058,384 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Scratch ticket prize expense 9,558,191 9,441,527 38,682,661 37,298,842 
Pick 3 prize expense 343,075 336,431 1,333,816 1,325,721 
Powerball prize expense 2,502,758 2,234,115 12,820,049 11,073,151 
Mega Millions prize expense 580,265 572,411 2,219,762 2,386,984 
Hot Lotto prize expense 356,808 450,631 1,671,187 1,676,021 
Pick 4 prize expense 163,972 150,876 609,205 575,940 
$100,000 Cash Game prize expense 202,094 209,188 798,667 797,448 
Pull-tab prize expense 845,595 942,704 3,382,688 3,543,273 
VIP Club prize expense 0 165,176 245,000 657,124 
Promotional prize expense 5,752 16,991 106,963 41,376 
Advertising/publicity 520,568 460,874 2,410,865 2,021,317 
Retailer compensation expense 1,576,086 1,617,520 6,652,325 6,435,323 
Ticket expense 239,243 261,430 1,092,464 956,076 
Vendor compensation expense 503,644 515,399 2,130,019 2,025,267 
Salary and benefits 775,265 787,953 3,234,202 3,156,279 
Travel 34,728 35,886 143,435 141,367 
Supplies 3,290 11,201 46,612 41,387 
Printing 0 0 5,992 1,079 
Postage 370 314 1,179 1,334 
Communications 31,956 13,826 66,983 46,818 
Rentals 25,459 24,705 101,375 . 99,781 
Uiilities 7,536 5,837 29,251 27,264 
Professional fees 6,679 3,123 27,417 28,917 
Vending machine maintenance 47,020 44,631 188,143 178,831 
Outside services and repairs 24,487 34,785 133,987 102,107 
Data processing 8,532 4,182 30,958 18,252 
Equipment 44,872 26,633 79,043 79,096 
Reimbursement to other 

state agencies 69,317 55,001 155,494 137,381 
Depreciation 23,980 20,283 97,127 . 81,131 
Other 18,746 9,172 36,429 21,103 
MUSL administrative expense 4,434 3,087 17,734 12,350 

Total operating expenses 18,524,722 18,455,892 78,551,032 74,988,340 

Operating income 6,071,455 7,024,104 25,809,422 26,070,044 



lOW A LOTTERY AUTHORiTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2013 

Month ended Month ended Year-to-date 
October 31, 2013 October 31, 2012 October 31, 2013 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Proceeds deposited to: 
State General Fund (6, 149,653) (7,105,024) (25,221,852) 
Veterans Trust Fund (47,564) (69,313) (716,808) 

Interest Income 6,126 4,238 14,350 
Interest expense 0 (3,010) 0 

Net non-Operating revenues (expenses) (6,191,091) (7,173,109) (25,924,310) 

Change in net position (119,636) (149,005) (114,888) 

Net position, begitming 
of period 6,288,927 5,406,608 6,284,179 

Net position, end 
of period $6,169,291 $5,257,603 $6,169,291 

Year-to-date 
October 31, 2012 

(25,159,252) 
(889,905) 

52,797 
(12,Q41) 

(26,008,401) 

61,643 

5,195,960 

$5,257,603 



INVESTIGATION 

Cases: 5 
Cases open: 4 
Cases closed: 1 (arrest) 

EVENTS 

SECURITY REPORT 
SEPTEMBER 2013 

TYPES 

Theft:4 
Burglary: 1 

Provide Security for the $100,000 Cash Game and all second chance and promotional 
drawings, 25 drawings. Assisted with the Summer Cash drawing. Martha did power 
point presentation for MGIR conference for attendance in Oct. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Assist Validations Department: 24 
Law Enforcement Contacts: 9 
ABO Notifications: 1 
ABO File only: 9 
Records of contact: 25 
VIP assists: 12 
Arrests: 1 
Compliance checks: 23 



INVESTIGATION 

Cases: 4 

SECURITY REPORT 
OCTOBER 2013 

TYPES 

Employee Theft: 2 
Burglary: 1 Cases open: 2 

Cases closed: 2 Ticket issue: 1 

EVENTS 

Provide Security for the $100,000 Cash Game and all second chance and promotional 
drawings, 27 drawings. Attended MGIR and LEIN conferences and 1 unattended ticket 
print. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Assist Validations Department: 23 
Law Enforcement Contacts: 8 
ABO Notifications: 7 
ABO File only: 9 
VIP:2 
Records of contact: 30 
Arrests: 2 
Compliance checks: 67 



SECURITY REPORT 
NOVEMBER 2013 

INVESTIGATIONS 

Cases:6 
Cases open: 6 
Cases closed: 0 

EVENTS 

TYPES 

Missing tickets: 1 
Burglary: 2 
Possible fraud: 1 
Theft:2 

Provide Security for the $100,000 Cash Game and all second chance and promotional 
drawings, 26 drawings. Assisted Marketing with the Tail Gator Promotion, 3 ticket prints 
attended. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Assist Validations Department: 13 
Law Enforcement contacts: 5 
ABO notifications: 2 
ABO file only: 10 
Records of contact: 35 
Arrests: 1 
Compliance checks: 11 



PROPOSED RULE CHANGE: 

531-12.12(99G,252J) Suspension or revocation of a license. 
12.12(1) The lottery may suspend or revoke any license issued pursuant to these rules for one or more of 

the following reasons: 
a. Failing to meet or maintain the eligibility criteria for license application and issuance established by 

Iowa Code Supplement chapter 990 or these rules. 
b. Violating any of the provisions of Iowa Code Supplement chapter 990, these rules, or the license 

terms and conditions. 
c. Failing to file any return or report or to keep records required by the lottery; failing to maintain an 

acceptable level of financial responsibility as evidenced by the financial condition of the business, incidents of 
failure to pay taxes or other debts, or by the giving of financial instruments that are dishonored or electronic 
funds transfers that are not paid; fraud, deceit, misrepresentation, or other conduct prejudicial to the public 
confiden~e in the lottery. · 

d. If public convenience is adequately served by other licensees. 
e. Failing to sell a minimum number of tickets as established by the lottery. 
f A history of thefts or other forms of losses of tickets or revenue from the business. 
g. Violating federal, state, or local law or allowing the violation of any of these laws on premises 

occupied by or controlled by any person over whom the retailer has substantial control. 
h. Obtaining a license by fraud, misrepresentation, concealment or through inadvertence or mistake. 
i. Making a misrepresentation of fact to the board or lottery on any report, record, application fom1, or 

questionnaire required to be submitted to the board or lottery. 
j. Denying the lottery or its authorized representative, including authorized local law enforcement 

agencies, access to any place where a licensed activity is conducted. 
k. Failing to promptly produce for inspection or audit any book, record, document, or other item required 

to be produced by law, these rules, or the tenns of the license. 
I. Systematically pursuing economic gain in an occupational manner or context which is in violation of 

the criminal or civil public policy of this state if such pursuit creates cause to believe that the participation of 
such person in these activities is inimical to the proper operation of an authorized lottery. 

m. Failing to follow the instructions of the lottery for the conduct of any particular game or special event. 
n. Failing to follow security procedures of the lottery for the management of personnel, handling of 

tickets, or for the conduct of any particular game or special event. 
o. Making a misrepresentation of fact to a purchaser, or prospective purchaser, of a ticket, or to the 

general public with respect to the conduct of a particular game or special event. 
p. For a licensee who is an individual, when the lottery receives a certificate of noncompliance from the 

child support recovery unit in regard to the licensee, unless the unit furnishes the department with a withdrawal 
of the certificate of noncompliance. 

q. Allowing activities on the licensed premises that could compromise the dignity of the state. 
r. Failing to accurately or timely account or pay for lottery products, lottery games, revenues, or prizes as 

required by the lottery. 
s. Filing for or being placed in bankruptcy or receivership. 
I. Engaging in any conduct likely to result in injury to the property, revenue, or reputation of the lottery. 
11. Making any material change, as detennined in the sole discretion of the lottery, in any matter 

considered by the lottery in executing the contract with the retailer. 
12.12(2) The effective date of revocation or suspension of a license, or denial of the issuance or renewal of 

a license, as specified in the notice required by Iowa Code section 2521.8, shall be 60 days following service of 
the notice upon the licensee. All other notices of revocation or suspension shall be 20 days following service 
upon a licensee. 

12.12(3) If a retailer's license is suspended for more than 180 days from the effective date of the 



suspension, the lottery will revoke the retailer's license upon 15 days' notice served in confonnance with 
531-l2.l3(99G,252J). 

12.12(4) Upon suspicion that a retailer has sold a ticket to an underage player, the lottery will investigate 
and provide a written warning to the retailer describing the report of the event and of the potential violation of 
Iowa Code Supplement section 99G.30(3). In the event a retailer sells a ticket to an underage player and the 
lottery can substantiate the claim, the lottery sll&H-may suspend the retailer's license for 7 days. When a retailer 
sells a ticket to an underage player and the lottery can substantiate the claim a second time in a period of one 
year from the date of the first event, the lottery shaH-may suspend the retailer's license for a period of30 days. 
When a retailer sells a ticket to an underage player and the lottery can substantiate the claim a third time in a 
period of one year from the date of the first event as described in this rule, the retailer's license sll&H-!lli!Y..be 
suspended for one year. 

12.12(5) Upon revocation or suspension of a retailer's license of 30 days or longer, the retailer shall 
surrender to the lottery, by a date designated by the lottery, the license, lottery identification card, and all other 
lottery property. The lottery will settle the retailer's account as if the retailer had terminated its relationship 
with the lottery voluntarily. 

This rule is intended to implement Iowa Code section 252J.8 and Iowa Code Supplement sections 
99G.9(3), 99G.2l(2), 99G.24, 99G.27, 99G.30(3), and 99G.35. 



December 2013 

Update: Property Considerations for Iowa Lottery Authority 
Headquarters at 2323 Grand Ave. in Des Moines 

In late 2012, as part of the Iowa Lottery's ongoing efforts to analyze its budget needs for the 
next five to 10 years, Lottery CEO Terry Rich asked lottery staff and the Iowa Department of 
Administrative Services (DAS) to review major maintenance and improvement needs at the 
lottery's headquarters building at 2323 Grand Ave. in Des Moines. The lottery has owned the 
building, which is nearly 60 years old, for 10 years and includes the structure's maintenance 
costs in its annual budgets. 

Although the lottery achieved long-term savings by purchasing its headquarters property, the 
review revealed maintenance issues that need to be addressed in the near future and may 
involve major changes. Lottery executives met with state, city and private-sector experts to 
gather as much information as possible regarding potential solutions. The goal is to ultimately 
make the best-informed fiscal decision for the good of the state of Iowa and the Iowa Lottery. 

Reviews by two separate engineering firms (MODUS in Des Moines and KJWW in Urbandale) 
have concluded that in addition to other repair and replacement needs, the lottery building's 
HVAC system is well beyond its life expectancy. And, because major parts for the system are 
no longer produced, failure of the system would force the lottery to make an emergency 
replacement, displacing employees and possibly compromising lottery sales, which currently 
average nearly $1 million per day. 

Both engineering firms also concluded that the outdated design of the HVAC system is not 
compatible with modern equipment and necessitates a complete replacement, including 
asbestos abatement. 

Other major maintenance needs at the building over the next five to 10 years include roof 
replacement, installation of energy efficient windows, tuck pointing and elimination of a water
infiltration issue in the garage/storage area. 

To date, the lottery has consulted with: 
• Ben Brackett, Administrator, DAS Lease and Space Management Services 
• Dave Peterson, DAS Senior Resource Manager 
• Douglas Woodley, DAS Chief Operating Officer 
• Marian White, DAS Deputy Administrator, State Leasing Program 
• Iowa Department of Management 
• City of Des Moines 
• The Baker Group In Des Moines regarding building infrastructure systems 
• Smith Metzger Architects in Des Moines, consultants for the Ingersoll and Grand 

Avenue Planning Committee 
• Iowa Alcohol Beverages Division regarding warehouse options. 

The lottery gathered10- and 20-year pricing comparisons for three options: 
• Renovation of the existing building 
• Demolition of the existing building and construction of a smaller building on the same 

property 

1 



• Sale of 2323 Grand Avenue and purchase or lease of office space elsewhere. 

Lottery staff provided the Lottery Board with an initial report about the building issues at the 
Board's meeting on June 28, 2013. At that meeting, Jack Schroeder, Vice President for 
Operations and Systems, discussed the building's ongoing maintenance needs in addition to 
issues related to its heating, ventilation and cooling (HVAC) system. The following options were 
identified as potential solutions: 

• Replacement of the HVAC system knowing that other major items would need to be 
replaced in the next few years 

• Selling the building and leasing or buying other existing property 
• Constructing a new building. 

Rich informed the Board that the lottery team would continue to work with DAS as the state of 
Iowa's space-management experts and the third parties involved and come back to the Board in 
the next few months with a recommendation. 

Lottery staff continued to work with DAS representatives and identified the goal of efficiently 
occupying office space that matches the lottery's business requirements while maintaining 
economic integrity. Critical and Secondary Business Requirements were developed and 
incorporated into the Iowa Lottery Relocation Project. On Sept. 9, 2013, the DAS-General 
Services Enterprise (DAS-GSE) Real Estate Team released a public opportunity document to 
allow interested parties to competitively bid for the acquisition/relocation of the Iowa Lottery's 
headquarters as part of an open, public process designed to ensure transparency. The 
document established a proposal submission deadline of Sept. 27, 2013. A copy of this 
document is included in this packet. 

At the Lottery Board meeting on Sept. 24, 2013, Jack Schroeder informed the Board about the 
release of the public opportunity document. Schroeder additionally informed the Board that all 
responses were to be sent to Ben Brackett. Brackett at DAS-GSE is who is serving as the 
Lottery's point of contact for this project. Schroeder also advised the Board that the Lottery 
would continue to update the Board as this project moved forward. 

December 13, 2013 Update 
DAS-GSE reports that approximately twenty (20) proposals were submitted to the public 
opportunity document based on four general concepts: 

• Building purchase 
• Land purchase 
• Build-to-suit lease with option to purchase 
• Redevelopment of 2323 Grand (sale-leaseback) 

Following the receipt of the proposals, DAS-GSE Real Estate Team members completed an 
analysis of them with the focus of identifying the properties that best met the goal identified for 
the project. This was done through the review of proposals and sites as well as the conducting 
of market research and financial analysis. 

DAS-GSE Real Estate Team identified a final group of locations and presented the finalists to 
Lottery Executive Vice President Larry Loss. Tours were conducted of the finalist locations and 
ongoing discussions with the property owners are currently being held. 

2 



Due to budgetary and timing factors, the focus has been on acquisition of an existing property 
other than 2323 Grand Ave. An aspect of the discussion includes the disposition of the Lottery's 
current building and the potential to include it in an overall agreement. Tours of Lottery 
headquarters by the respondent finalists were completed the week of Nov. 25, 2013. 

In order to help determine a purchase price for the Lottery's current headquarters location, an 
appraisal from a third party company has been ordered by DAS-GSE. 

The following are the next steps to be taken: 
• Week of Dec. 9, 2013- Receive final deal structures from respondents 
• Week of Dec. 16, 2013 -third-party appraisal is completed and used to finalize the 

Lottery's position with respondents 
• Dec. 16-31, 2013- Review proposals and develop an offer to be signed by the preferred 

respondent. Upon agreement of terms, the proposal will be subject to approval from the 
Lottery Board and the Executive Council of Iowa with notification to the legislative 
Government Oversight Committees. 

3 



Iowa Department of Administrative Services 

------------------
DAS 

Government's Partner in Achieving Results 

FR: Ben Brackett 
GSE Real Estate Se!Vices 

DT: September 9, 2013 

RE: IOWA LOTTERY RELOCATION PROJECT 

Governor Terry E. Branstad 
Lt. Governor Kim Reynolds 

Mike Carroll, Director 

On behalf of the Iowa Lottery (ILOT) and the Department of Administrative Services, General Services Enterprise 
(GSE) Real Estate Services is pleased to present a public opportunity to competitively bid for the relocation/ 
acquisition of the I LOT headquarters, currently located at 2323 Grand Avenue. 

ILOT began in 1985 with the intention of making Iowa a better place to live, work, and raise a family. By providing 
entertainment and prizes to its players, I LOT simultaneously raises billions of dollars for state programs that 
benefit all Iowans. Through the years, these funds have been used in a variety of ways to enhance the state, 
including projects to create new recreation areas, support research at Iowa's public universities, benefit Iowa 
veterans, develop new products and techniques for agriculture, and promote tourism. 

The intent of this broadcast is to solicit proposals for a real estate solution; a variety of results are possible. The 
current property at 2323 Grand Avenue is too large for the I LOT operation and a full scale review of the integrity 
of the property has led away from a state-funded renovation project. 

More detail will be provided through the document, but generally the solutions we are open to include: 

1. Purchase of raw/semi-improved land (State of Iowa woulc/ self-perform construction) 
2. Purchase an existing structure (State of Iowa woulc/ self-perform renovation) 
3. Build-to-suit lease with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 
4. Sale-leaseback of current location with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 

Due to the scope of the project, it will be handled in phases: 

• Phase 1-market research, site selection (September - November 2013) 
• Phase 2- proposals, negotiations, (potentially design), final selection (November- December 

2013) 
• Phase 3- (potentially design), relocation , full occupancy (2014) 
• Phase 4 - disposition of 2323 Grand Avenue (2014) 

)> Phase 3 & 4 are likely to be simultaneous and/or overlapping actions. 

Over the next 6-8 weeks, GSE Real Estate Services will compile, tour, and analyze all viable sites with the 
intention of paring the selection to 4-6 properties to present to the I LOT Building Committee early in November. A 
final selection is anticipated at the turn of the calendar year and we expect I LOT to have a clear direction as we 
move into 2014. 

Thank you for your interest! 

Best regards, 

Ben Brackett 
GSE Real Estate Services 

Hoover State Office Building 1305 East Walnut Street Des Moines, lA 50319 (515) 281-5360 http://das.iowa.gov 



SECTION 1. CRITICAL BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS 

I LOT has a small number of requirements that are absolutely critical and will act objectively as barriers to entry for 
the project. Secondary requirements may apply more to existing properties and/or assist insomuch as a 
barometer for the type of facility I LOT aspires to occupy. 

I. Critical Business Requirements 
a. Connectivity/IT- Fiber Optic capability/connectivity 

• Minimum bandwidth requirement of 50 MBPS, but could utilize up to 100 MBPS 
• Access to State of Iowa network- solution will be driven by I LOT 

b. Location 
• Des Moines Metro 
• Accessible 
• Visible (bolstered by signage) 

c. Security 
• Free-standing, single tenant building 
• Physical Security (existing property)- cameras, key card access, alarm system 
• Design/layout (existing property) 

d. Generator Power 
• Current operation utilizes 750 kilowatts 

II. Secondary Business Requirements 
a. Upgrade to Modern Space Standards 

• Targeting 20,000 SF 
• Open floor plan 
• Multiple conference rooms/enclaves 
• Break room 

b. Dedicated space for public-facing Interaction 
• Interface wilh winners/guests/visitors 
• Media room 
• Clear delineation/separation from office area 

c. Parking 
• Must accommodate 55 employees 
• 5-10 visitor spaces 

d. Computer Room 
• Raised floor 
• Dedicated HVAC/cooling system 
• Fire suppression 
• Redundancy 

e. Storage Area - up to 5,000 SF 
f. Secured Receiving Area and Truck/Loading Dock 



SECTION 2. SOLUTIONS 

Due to the unique nature of the requirement, GSE understands that there are a number of potential approaches to 
the relocation of I LOT. An additional layer is formed by the need to dispose of 2323 Grand upon successful 
relocation of the I LOT operation. Below are our preferred solutions; however, GSE will entertain creative 
solutions such as a property swap or redevelopment of the current location. 

1. Purchase raw/semi-improved land (State of Iowa would self-perform construction) 
2. Purchase an existing structure (State of Iowa would self-perform renovation) 
3. Build-to-suit lease with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 
4. Sale-leaseback of current location with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 

Considerations for preferred solutions: 

• 2-3 acres to be required in order to accommodate the appropriately sized building 
• Current operation houses a small warehouse space- any potential for warehouse space in addition to 

approximately 20,000 SF of office is of interest. 
• All options that include a lease would be subject to meeting the terms of GSE standard lease form, 

attached as Exhibit A. 
• Lease term minimum: 10 years 
• Energy efficient solutions are of interest 
• Des Moines proper will hold a slight advantage over other markets due to location of the current operation 
• Collaboration among companies is anticipated - for example a land owner partnering with a construction 

company to deliver a solution or a developer to create an investment platform with I LOT as the Tenant. 

);> Regarding the eventual disposition of 2323 Grand: GSE understands the property to be eligible for state 
and federal tax credits due to the age of the property. More information can be found at the State 
Historical Preservation Office web site (http:l/www.iowahistory.org/historic-preservation/). 



SECTION 3. RESPONSE 

Proposal Format 

GSE strives to compare solutions in a like-for-like scenario. Accordingly, all respondents must provide similar 
response packages. Respondents are required to submit responses electronically. Each response is expected to 
Include the following: 

• Resume/qualifications from responding entity 
• Narrative describing proposed solution 
• Marketing materials 
• Pricing proposal 
• Floor plans and site plans - upon final selection these files will be required in AutoCAD format 

Incomplete proposals will not be considered. 

Proposal Deadline 

GSE will accept proposals until end of business on Friday, September 27, 2013. Again, responses are required 
to be submitted electronically, although including a hard copy as well is welcomed. 

Communication 

All questions, concerns, and comments regarding this project must filter through GSE Real Estate Services. Due 
to the high profile of this project, any inappropriate contact with I LOT staff will disqualify the respondent from the 
project. All contact should be directed to Ben Brackett. 

Ben Brackett 
GSE Real Estate Services 
Hoover Building, Level A 
1305 E Walnut 
Des Moines, lA 50319 
0: 515.725.2282 
C: 515.802.1729 
ben.brackett@iowa.gov 

Any project-critical questions that are raised will be answered to the entire pool of respondents via email. 

Tlmeline for tf1e Project 

• Phase 1- market research, site selection (September- November 2013) 
• Phase 2- proposals, negotiations, (potentially design), final selection (November - December 2013) 
• Phase 3- (potentially design), relocation, full occupancy (2014) 
• Phase 4- disposition of 2323 Grand Avenue (2014) 

• Phase 3 & 4 are likely to be simultaneous actions or at least overlap. 



Iowa Department of Admin istrative Services 

DAS 
Government's Partner in Achieving Results 

FR: Ben Brackett 
DAS-GSE Real Estate Team 

DT: September 9, 2013 

RE: IOWA LOTTERY RELOCATION PROJECT 

Governor Terry E. Branstad 
Lt. Governor Kim Reynolds 

Mike Carroll, Director 

On behalf of the Iowa Lottery (I LOT), the DAS-GSE Real Estate Team is pleased to present a public opportunity 
to competitively bid for the acquisition/relocation of the ILOT headquarters, currently located at 2323 Grand 
Avenue. 

ILOT began in 1985 with the intention of making Iowa a better place to live, work, and raise a family. By providing 
entertainment and prizes to its players, ILOT simultaneously raises billions of dollars for state programs that 
benefit all Iowans. Through the years, these funds have been used in a variety of ways to enhance the state, 
including projects to create new recreation areas, support research at Iowa's public universities, benefit Iowa 
veterans, develop new products and techniques for agriculture, and promote tourism . 

The intent of this broadcast is to solicit proposals for a real estate solution, of which a variety of results are 
possible. The current property at 2323 Grand Avenue is too large for the I LOT operation and after a full scale 
review of the integrity of the property has led away from a state-funded renovation of the property. 

More detail will be provided through the document, but generally, the solutions we are open to include: 

1. Purchase of raw/semi-improved land (State of Iowa would self-perform construction) 
2. Purchase an existing structure (State of Iowa would self-perform renovation) 
3. Build-to-suit lease with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 
4. Sale-leaseback of current location with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 

Due to the scope of the project, it will be handled in phases: 

• Phase 1 -market research, site selection (September- November 2013) 
• Phase 2- proposals, negotiations, (potentially design) , final selection (November- December 

2013) 
• Phase 3- (potentially design), relocation, full occupancy (2014) 
• Phase 4- disposition of 2323 Grand Avenue (2014) 

~ Phase 3 & 4 are likely to be simultaneous actions or at least overlap. 

Over the next 6-8 weeks, the DAS-GSE Real Estate Team will compile, tour, and analyze all viable sites with the 
intention of paring the selection to 4-6 properties to present to the I LOT Building Committee early in November. A 
final selection is anticipated at the turn of the calendar year and we expect for I LOT to have a clear direction as 
we ring in 2014. 

Thank you for your interest! 

Best regards, 

Ben Brackett 
DAS-GSE Real Estate Team 

Hoover State Office Building 1305 East Walnut Street Des Moines, lA 50319 (515) 281-5360 http:f/das.iowa.gov 



SECTION 1. CRITICAL BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS 

!LOT has a small number of requirements that are absolutely critical and will act objectively as barriers to entry for 
the project. Secondary requirements may apply more to existing properties and/or assist insomuch as a 
barometer for the type of operation !LOT aspires to occupy. 

I. Critical Business Requirements 
a. Connectivity/IT- Fiber Optic capability/connectivity 

• Minimum bandwidth requirement of 50 MBPS, but could utilize up to 100 MBPS 
• Access to State of Iowa network- solution will be driven by !LOT 

b. Location 
• Des Moines Metro 
• Accessible 
• Visible (bolstered by signage) 

c. Security 
• Free-standing, single tenant building 
• Physical Security (existing property) - cameras, key card access, alarm system 
• Design/layout (existing property) 

d. Generator Power 
• Current operation uses 750 kilowatts 

II. Secondary Business Requirements 
a. Upgrade to Modern Space Standards 

• Targeting 20,000 SF 
• Open floor plan 
• Multiple conference rooms/enclaves 
• Cafeteria 

b. Dedicated space for public-facing interaction 
• Interface with winners/guests/visitors 
• Media room 
• Clear delineation/separation from office area 

c. Parking 
• Must accommodate 55 employees 
• 5-10 visitor spaces 

d. Computer Room 
• Raised floor 
• Dedicated HVAC/cooling system 
• Fire suppression 
• Redundancy 

e. Storage Area- up to 5,000 SF 
f. Secured Receiving Area and Truck/Loading Dock 



SECTION 2. SOLUTIONS 

Due to the unique nature of the requirement, DAS-GSE understands that there are a number of potential 
approaches to the relocation of I LOT. An additional layer is formed by the need to dispose of 2323 Grand upon 
successful relocation of the ILOT operation. Below are our preferred solutions; however, DAS-GSE will entertain 
creative solutions such as a property swap or redevelopment of the current location. 

1. Purchase raw/semi-improved land (State of Iowa would self-perform construction) 
2. Purchase an existing structure (State of Iowa would self-perform renovation) 
3. Build-to-suit lease with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 
4. Sale-leaseback of current location with an option to purchase upon lease expiration 

Considerations for preferred solutions: 

• 2-3 acres to be required in order to accommodate the appropriate building 
• Current operation houses a small warehouse space - any potential for warehouse space is of interest 
• All options that include a lease would be subject to meeting the terms of DAS-GSE standard lease form, 

attached as Exhibit A. 
• Lease term minimum: 10 years 
• Energy efficient solutions are of interest 
• Des Moines proper will hold a slight advantage over other markets due to location of current operation 
• Collaboration among companies is expected- for example a land owner partnering with a construction 

company to deliver a solution or a developer creating an investment platform with ILOT as the Tenant. 

~ Regarding the eventual disposition of 2323 Grand: DAS-GSE understands the property to be eligible for 
state and federal tax credits due to the age of the property. More information can be found at the State 
Historical Preservation Office web site (http://www.iowahistory.org/historic-preservationD. 



SECTION 3. RESPONSE 

Proposal Format 

DAS-GSE strives to compare solutions in a like-for-like scenario. Accordingly, all respondents must provide 
similar response packages. Each response is expected to include the following: 

• Resume/qualifications from responding entity 
• Narrative describing proposed solution 
• Marketing materials 
• Pricing proposal 
• Floor plans and site plans- upon final selection these files will be required in AutoCAD format 

Incomplete proposals will not be considered. 

Proposal Deadline 

DAS-GSE will accept proposals until end of business on Friday, September 27. Responses are required to be 
submitted electronically, although including a hard copy as well is welcomed. 

Communication 

All questions, concerns, and comments regarding this project must filter through the DAS-GSE Real Estate Team. 
Due to the high profile of this project, any inappropriate contact with I LOT staff will disqualify the respondent from 
the project. All contact should be directed to Ben Brackett. 

Ben Brackett 
DAS-GSE Real Estate Team 
Hoover Building, Level A 
1305 E Walnut 
Des Moines, lA 50319 
0: 515.725.2282 
C: 515.802.1729 
ben.brackett@ iowa.gov 

Any project-critical questions raised will be answered to the entire pool of respondents via email. 

Timeline for the Project 

• Phase 1 - market research, site selection (September- November 2013) 
• Phase 2 - proposals, negotiations, (potentially design), final selection (November- December 2013) 
• Phase 3- (potentially design), relocation, full occupancy (2014) 
• Phase 4- disposition of 2323 Grand Avenue (2014) 

• Phase 3 & 4 are likely to be simultaneous actions or at least overlap. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
230.600 I 

Page No. 
1 of 1 

Payment Policies-Memberships in Outside Organizations 

I 
Effective Date 
Januaty 7, 2013 

I . Approval for memberships in outside organizations, including but not limited to lottety 
industry and retail business trade associations, must be obtained from the ILA Board before 
the claim can be processed. This applies to new memberships as well as renewals. 

2. Approved memberships shall be paid on a General Accounting Expenditure Membership 
(GAXM) by using the following process: 

a) All requests for membership expenses are made via the Online Membership 
Authotization (OMA) website (https://eservices.iowa.gov/oma/index.faces). 

b) Upon submission of the OMA, a GAXM will be created in I/3 Financial. 
c) Object code 2810 Organization Dues must be used. 
d) 113 approvals will include the Iowa Lottery CEO. 
e) Print the GAXM and attach all necessary supporting documentation and send it to SAE · 

Daily Processing. 
f) SAE Daily Processing applies final 113 approval. 

NOTE: Memberships shall not be paid on a Pcard or reimbursed to an employee on a TP. 

Information included on the GAXM will be published on the State's transparency website. 



Iowa Lottery Authority 

Section Procedure No. 
I 

Page No. 
I 

Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.150 1 of2 January 7, 2013 

Subject 
Miscellaneous-Prior Approvals-One-Time Approvals 

Prior approvals are necessary because they represent a deviation from normal ILA 
reimbursement policies and are used to alett all interested parties of the necessary exceptions to 
standard practices. 

1. Iowa Lottery Authority- Prior approval is needed from the CEO or a designee for the 
following: 

a. Exceptions for out-of-state subsistence allowance above state limits. See procedure 
210.305. 

b. Certain prepayment of expenses. See procedure 230.550 for when this is necessary. See 
procedure 240.171 for a sample request form. 

c. When providing physical examination for existing employees - unless employee is 
covered by a contract. See procedure 220.300. 

d. When establishing deposit accounts. See procedure 240.250. 

e. When requesting the establishment of, or a change to, imprest petty cash funds. See 
procedure 240.300. 

f. When requesting an exception to the standard procedure for advance payments on 
contracts (see procedure 230.550(2)(g)). 

2. Chief Executive Officer or Designee- Prior approval is needed fi·om the Chief Executive 
Officer or a designee and must be documented and signed on the fotm, "Request for 
Exception to ILA Policies" (see procedure 240.171 ), and attached to the claim for the 
following: 

a. An approved Travel Department Authorization (TDA) for all/any out-of-state travel. 
• This approval is to be applied by the CEO per Iowa Code 8A.512A(2)(a). 

b. In certain instances when expenses are incurred on behalf of any employee (including 
board members), and the ILA wants to reimburse the 3rd party directly. See procedure 
210.115 for specifics. Also see procedure 240.171 for sample request form. 

c. When lodging is required for an employee in their official domicile or residence, or when 
lodging is unavoidably needed in excess of the ILA limits, except as mentioned in 
procedure 210.205(2)(a)(3). See procedure 240.171 for sample request form. 



Iowa Lottery Authority 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.150 2 of2 January 7, 2013 

Subject 
Miscellaneous-Prior Approvals-One-Time A_lll)rovals 

d. Meals within official domicile or place of residence. See procedure 210.108. 

e. Meals not associated with a conference and are unavoidably needed in excess of allowable 
limits. 

f. When conference meals are unavoidably needed in excess of the maximum Reimbursable 
Conference Meal Rates. See procedure 240.171 for sample request form. 

3. Department of Administrative Services-Human Resources Enterprise- DAS-HRE 
requires prior approval for the following: 
a. When using private employment and placement agencies not on a state contract. See 

Procedure 230.350. 
b. When requesting reimbursement for Educational Assistance Leave. See Procedure 

220.150. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
1 of 15 I 

Effective Date 
December 13,2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Purchasing Policies 

Master Agreements 
Prior to purchasing any goods or services, the ILA associate shall review the Department of Administrative Services 
(DAS) website and/or State Accounting System (1/3) for any available master agreement. Goods or services of 
general use available on a master agreement may be purchased from a different vendor if the quantity required 
makes it cost-effective to purchase from a non-master agreement vendor or if there is an immediate or emergency 
need for an item and the ILA determines that its best interests will be served by exemption from the bidding 
process. 

Competitive Procurement 
Above $50,000 

1. A formal (sealed) competitive selection process is required in connection with any "major procurement" 
except in cases where a single vendor has an exclusive right to offer a product or service. A "major 
procurement" is defined as any consulting agreement or any contract for the printing of tickets or the 
purchase or lease of equipment or services essential to the operation of a lottery game. Invitations-to
bid or Requests for Proposal (RFP) must be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the 
Targeted Small Business (TSB) website and shall be advertised in a daily paper in Iowa. Award of bid 
or RFP requires CEO and Lottery Board approval. 

2. A formal (sealed) competitive selection process is required in connection with the purchase of goods or 
services when COST IS NOT the main criterion for selection and the goods or services are expected to 
cost in the aggregate of $50,000 or more. Invitations-to-bid or RFPs must be posted to the DAS bid 
opportunities website and the TSB website. Award of bid or RFP requires CEO approval and Lottery 
Board approval for services only. 

3. A formal or informal competitive selection process (which includes electronic or fax submissions) is 
required for the purchase of goods that are not essential to the operation of a lottery game, when 
COST IS the main criterion for selection and the goods are expected to cost in the aggregate of 
$50,000 or more. Bids must be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the TSB website. 
Award of bid requires CEO approval. 

4. The use of other state or public entity current agreements for goods or services may be utilized to 
purchase the goods and services by the Lottery instead of issuing a competitive bid or RFP. 

Above $5,000 to $50,000 
1. GOODS- An informal or formal competitive selection process for goods may be used when cost is the 

main criterion and the goods are expected to cost greater than $5,000 and less than $50,000. The 
following guidelines shall apply: 
a. The informal or formal invitation-to-bid may be issued electronically to selected vendors known to 
offer the goods and may be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the TSB website. 
b. Award may require CEO approval depending upon total cost. 
c. Informal bids shall be documented in writing. If informal bids are obtained via telephone, notes taken 
by the ILA associate during the telephone call qualify as appropriate documentation; e-mail or fax bids 
or quotes also qualify as responses. All documentation shall be attached to the purchase file. 
d. If the goods are expected to cost over $5,000 but the contract will be awarded to a vendor based on 
special circumstances or criteria other than cost, the CEO or Executive Vice-President may grant a 
waiver of the bidding requirement. The ILA associate requesting the waiver shall do so in writing. 
e . If the ILA has a list of vendors that provide the goods, all applicable vendors on the list shall be 
contacted or provided an invitation-to-bid. 
f. If there is no vendor list for the goods, but the ILA associate requesting the informal bid knows of 
three or more vendors who provide the goods, at least three informal bids shall be obtained. If the ILA 
associate does not know of at least three vendors who provide the goods , then as many bids as 
possible should be obtained and the ILA associate should document in writing why fewer than three 
bids were taken. 
g. If the lowest bidder is not awarded the contract, the reason should be documented in writing, 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit I Procedure No. 

240.102 I 
Page No. 
2 ofl5 I 

Effective Date 
December 13, 2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

attached to the purchase file and approved by authorized person signing the purchase order or 
contract. 
h._lf an outside entity (ad agency or other vendors) conducts a competitive bidding process on behalf 
of the ILA, the policies stated above shall also apply. 
i. Any goods of $10,000 and below may be purchased from a DIA certified TSB vendor without any 
informal quote/bid obtained. The purchase file should contain a screen-print showing the vendor is an 
authorized company and appears on the TSB website at time of purchase. 
j. If the goods being purchased are known by the ILA associate to result in possible re-orders during 

fiscal year and cost in the aggregate over $5,000, a written contract is required. 
k. If the goods are a single purchase and cost in the aggregate over $5,000, a written contract is 
required. 

2. SERVICES - An informal or formal competitive selection process for services may be used when cost 
is NOT the main criterion and the services are expected to cost greater than than $5,000 but less than 
$50,000 annually and or no more than $150,000 for a multi-year service. The following guidelines shall 
apply: 
a. The informal or formal competitive selection may be issued electronically to selected vendors 
known to offer the services and may be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the TSB 
website. 
b. Award requires CEO approval over $20,000 and Lottery Board approval over $25,000. 
c. Informal bids shall be documented in writing. If informal bids are obtained via telephone, notes taken 
by the ILA associate during the telephone call qualify as appropriate documentation; e-mail bids or 
quotes also qualify as responses. All documentation shall be attached to the purchase file. 
d. If the services are expected to cost over $5,000 but the contract will be awarded to a vendor based 
on special circumstances or criteria other than cost, the CEO or Executive Vice-President may grant a 
waiver of the bidding requirement. The ILA associate requesting the waiver shall do so in writing. 
e. If the ILA has a list of vendors that provide the service, all applicable vendors on the list shall be 
contacted or provided an invitation-to-bid. 
f. If there is no vendor list for the service, but the ILA associate requesting the informal bid knows of 
three or more vendors who provide the service, at least three informal bids shall be obtained. If the ILA 
associate does not know of at least three vendors who provide the service, then as many bids as 
possible should be obtained and the ILA associate should document in writing why fewer than three 
bids were taken. 
g. If the lowest bidder is not awarded the contract, the reason should be documented in writing, 
attached to the purchase file and approved by authorized person signing the purchase order or 
contract. 
h. Any services of $10,000 and below may be purchased from a DIA certified TSB vendor without any 
informal quote/bid obtained. The purchase file should contain a screen-print showing the vendor is an 
authorized company and appears on the TSB website at time of purchase. 
i. If the service being purchased is known by the ILA associate to result in additional services at a later 
time during the fiscal year and cost in the aggregate over $5,000, a written contract is required . 
j. Refer to services contract section below for additional requirements. 

$1,001 -$5,000-
1. SERVICES- For services costing less than $5,000 annually or less than $15,000 for multi-year service 

, no competitive bids are required. A written contract is required for services above $1,000. Refer to 
services contract section below for additional requirements. 

2. GOODS - Goods costing less than $5,000 may be obtained by informal telephone bids/quotes or price 
comparisons. The following guidelines shall apply: 
a. Bids from three sources are to be obtained for all items in aggregate at time of order placement. 
b. Informal bids shall be documented in writing. If informal bids are obtained via telephone, notes 
taken by the ILA associate during the telephone call qualify as appropriate documentation. Internet 
screen shots, faxes and e-mail bids or quotes also qualify as responses. All documentation shall be 
attached to the purchase file. 



I 

Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit I 240.102 J 3 of15 I December 13,2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

c. If the ILA has a list of vendors that provide the service, all applicable vendors on the list shall be 
contacted or provided an invitation-to-bid 
d. If there is no vendor list for the goods, but the ILA associate requesting the informal bids knows of 
three or more vendors who provide the goods, at least three informal bids shall be obtained. If the ILA 
associate does not know of at least three vendors who provide the goods, then as many bids as 
possible should be obtained and the ILA associate should document in writing why fewer than three 
bids were taken. 
e. P-card may be used for purchases if direct billing is not feasible or for internet purchases, otherwise 
a purchase order should be issued. Purchases made via P-card should document price paid using a 
screen shot or e-mail receipt for the purchase file. Approval must be obtained prior to order placement 
for all purchases above $1,000. 

$1-$1,000-
1. Up to $1,000 -Informal quotes/bids are not required for single item purchases only, not aggregate 

purchases. If goods purchased are greater than $1,000 in aggregate see above requirements. Any 
documentation regarding purchase to be attached to purchase file or P-card file. 

2. P-card may be used for purchases if direct billing is not feasible or for internet purchases, otherwise a 
purchase order should be issued. Purchases made via P-card should document price paid using a 
screen shot or e-mail receipt for the purchase file. 

3. Goods AND Services - Less than $1,000, no written contract or PCQ is required. 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: 

Legal Review - All written contracts shall be submitted to the Vice President of General Counsel for review 
prior to contract execution. 

Sole Source - The CEO or Executive Vice-President must approve the use of all sole-source purchases by 
approving the sole-source document before any contract is awarded. If a written justification from 
requesting department is provided it should be attached to the sole-source document. The sole-source 
document and justification must be submitted to the CEO or EVP; once approved, the request must be 
posted on the State of Iowa bid opportunities website for five (5) calendar days before an agreement or 
contract for the goods or services is granted. If no vendor responds to the sole-source posting, purchase 
may proceed with all documentation to be placed with the purchase or contract file. Exception to the 
website posting shall be for a sole source that is restricted by licensing or trademark agreements and no 
other source could respond to the posting. 

Emergency Purchases- The ILA associate shall attempt to acquire goods and services of general use with as 
much competition as practicable under the circumstances and should try to obtain the best value for the 
funds spent under the circumstances. Justification for the emergency purchase shall be documented on 
the sole source/emergency documentation form and submitted to the CEO or EVP for approval. 

Purchase Order Approval Levels (not required over $5,000) 
1. All non-sole source purchases 

a. Purchasing Agent - up to $1,000 
b. Vice President of Operations and Systems - up to $5,000 
c. Executive Vice President- up to $5,000 · 
d. CEO- up to $5,000 

2. Ticket Dispenser related items covered by contract 
a. Purchasing Agent- up to $2,500 
b. Vice President of Operations and Systems - up to $5,000 
c. Executive Vice President - up to $5,000 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
4 of 15 I 

Effective Date 
December 13, 2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

d. CEO- up to $5,000 
3. Approval exceptions 

Vice President of Finance shall be the authorized backup during absences by the Executive Vice 
President and Vice President Operations and Systems for purchase order approvals. A Vice 
President should not approve purchase orders that provide goods or services to their own 
department, unless circumstances require an immediate signature. 

Contract Approval Levels 
1. All non-sole source contracts 

a. Vice President of Operations and Systems- up to $10,000 
b. Executive Vice President- up to $20,000 
c. CEO - up to $25,000 for services; no limit on goods 
d. Board approval- over $25,000 (for services only) 

2. All sole source purchase approvals 
a. Executive Vice President or 
b. CEO 

3. Approval exceptions 
Vice President of Finance shall be the authorized backup during absences by the Executive Vice 
President and Vice President Operations and Systems for contract approvals. A Vice President 
should not approve contracts that provide goods or services to their own department, unless 
circumstances require an immediate signature. 

Receipt of Goods 
ILA associates must inspect and/or determine the goods received meet the specifications of the order 
placed and that the appropriate quantities have been received. Packing slips or receipts describing the 
item received shall be attached to the purchase order before payment is made. In the absence of a 
packing slip or receipt, an e-mail from the receiving location shall be an acceptable form. 

Advertising Media Placement 
1. All advertising media placements require a purchase order or written contract. For placements 

exceeding, or expected to exceed, $5,000 in aggregate per fiscal year, a written contract is required 
prior to the placement of the advertising. 

2. For advertising media placement of $5,000 or less in aggregate per fiscal year may be placed on a pre
approved Lottery template. If the pre-approved Lottery template is used for the agreement, no legal 
review is required prior to approval and signature. Any advertising media placement agreements 
written on any other form require Lottery legal department review before signing. 

3. Approval levels for advertising media placement agreements are: 
a. $1 to $1,000 in aggregate for fiscal year may be approved by the Advertising 

Manager/Promotions Manager. 
b. $1 ,001 to $5,000 in aggregate for the fiscal year may be approved by the Vice President of 

Marketing. 
c. $5,000 and above in aggregate for the fiscal year must be approved by the EVP or other 

authorized signature. 
4. Sole Source 

Placement of media advertising is inherently a sole source item. No other identical venue exists for 
any particular media advertising placement. Therefore, this policy will serve to justify all advertising as 
sole source. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit I Procedure No. 

240.102 I 
Page No. 
5 of15 I Effective Date 

December 13, 20 13 
Subject 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Services Contracting 

1. Defined. 
Services contracts are contracts entered into by ILA to aid in carrying out its programs and to provide 
specialized services through an independent contractor qualified by education, experience and/or technical 
ability. Services contracts may be with individuals, partnerships, firms, corporations or other business entities. 

"Service or services" means work performed for the ILA by a service provider and includes, but is not limited to: 
• Professional or technical expertise provided by a consultant, advisor or other technical or service 

provider to accomplish a specific study, review, project, task, or other work as described in the 
scope of work. By way of example and not by limitation, these services may include the following: 
accounting services; aerial surveys; aerial mapping and seeding; appraisal services; land surveying 
services; construction manager services; analysis and assessment of processes, programs, fiscal 
impact, compliance, systems and the like, auditing services, communications services; services of 
peer reviewers, attorneys, financial advisors, and expert witnesses for litigation, architectural 
services, information technology consulting services; services of investment advisors and 
managers; marketing services; policy development and recommendations; program development; 
public involvement services and strategies; research services; scientific and related technical 
services; software development and system design; and services of underwriters, physicians, 
pharmacists, engineers, and architects; or 

• Services provided by a vendor to accomplish routine functions. These services contribute to the 
day-to-day operations of the ILA. By way of example and not by limitation, these services may 
include the following: ambulance service; charter service; boiler testing; bookkeeping service; 
building alarm systems service and repair; commercial laundry service; communications systems 
installations servicing and repair; court reporting and transcription services; engraving service; 
equipment or machine installation; preventive maintenance, inspection, calibration and repair; 
heating ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) system maintenance service; janitorial service; 
painting inside and outside; pest weed control service; grounds maintenance, mowing, parking lot 
sweeping and snow removal service; towing service; translation services; and travel service. 

• "Service contract" means a contract for a service or services where the predominant factor and 
purpose of the contract as reasonably stated is for the provision or rendering of services. When 
there is a mixed contract for both goods and services and the predominant factor and purpose of 
the contract as reasonably stated is for the provision or rendering of services with goods 
incidentally involved, a service contract exists and these rules apply. 

2. Policy Statement and Purpose. 
a. It is the policy of the ILA that the expenditure of lottery funds for service contractors shall, insofar as 

practicable, be done through an open, competitive process. 
b. This policy is to be used when determining the Employer/Employee Relationships, and working with the 

PCQ, SS-8 and payment processes. 
c. Contracts with state agencies, political subdivisions of the state of Iowa, federal government agencies, 

another state government or a political subdivision thereof are exempt from the competitive selection 
process (see 11 lAC 118.4(8A). 

d. Contracts under $1,000.00 (plus allowable expenses) are exempt from the PCQ process. 
e. Contracts with a Corporation, with a signed W9 attached to the claim, are exempt from the PCQ 

process. 

3. Determination of Employer/Employee Relationship, PCQ, 55-8 

a. Prior to signing a contract, DAS-SAE-Daily Processing personnel must make a determination as to 
whether or not the contractor has an employer/employee relationship with the ILA. Contracts that create an 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Page No. 
6 of 15 I 

Effective Date 
December 13,2013 

employer/employee relationship are not allowed. See section 3(g), if an employer/employee relationship 
exists. 

Prior to signing a contract, the iLA must review the VCUST (Vendor Customer Table) that is a part of the 
Iowa statewide accounting system (113). When DAS-SAE has reviewed and determined that no 
employer/employee relationship with the state exists, SAE will enter the SAE CONTROL# in the SAE 
Control# field on the VCUST table. 

If an individual (using a social security number or a tax identification number) or a company has the SAE 
Control# field populated, enter the SAE Control #on the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and complete other 
department actions on the contract. 

b. If the individual or company does not have an SAE Control #, then PRIOR to signing the contract the 
ILA MUST prepare and submit the original Pre- Contract Questionnaire (see attached sample form), the 
completed Internal Revenue Service (IRS) form SS-8, if not contracting with a corporation (see sample 
form), and the proposed, unsigned contract to DAS-SAE-Daily Processing. 

c. When contracting with a corporation, ILA may send to DAS-SAE the PCQ to obtain the SAE Control#, 
OR, in place of the PCQ attach an original signed W9 to the claim and send the document to DAS-SAE, 
attention PCQ coordinator, to add the SAE Control #to the VCUST table and write the SAE Control #on 
the payment claim, OR, to save time, attach the original signed W9 to the claim, and send a photocopy of 
the claim and W9 to DAS-SAE-attention PCQ coordinator to add the SAE Control #to the VCUST table. 
For future payments to this vendor, ILA will need to look at the VCUST table to get the SAE Control #to 
write on future claims for payment. 

d. If contracting with a group of individuals who will perform essentially the same function for the State and 
who will have essentially the same working relationship with the State, only one form SS-8 need be 
prepared. In preparing a "generic" SS-8, a statement must be attached outlining the estimated number of 
individuals per contract period. If the generic SS-8 must be later modified, then a new generic SS-8 must 
be processed through DAS-SAE-Daily Processing for approval. 

e. If the contract is between the ILA and an individual, and the service is to be performed in three (3) days 
or less and sufficient evidence can be presented as part of the Pre-Contract Questionnaire or attachments 
so that DAS-SAE-Daily Processing can ascertain that no employer/employee relationship exists, no SS-8 
need be completed. 

f. In addition to the SS-8, a recap of the Twenty Common Law Factors used by the IRS to determine the 
presence of an employer/employee relationship is attached for guidance below. 

g. If the ILA has not pre-determined the existence of an employer/employee relationship and the contractor 
does not have the SAE Control#, then the completed SS-8 if not contracting with a corporation, along with 
the proposed, unsigned contract, must be attached to the Pre-Contract Questionnaire when it is submitted 
to DAS-SAE-Daily Processing. In certain instances, the contractor may be required to complete IRS form 
W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number Certification. 

DAS-SAE-Daily Processing will review the proposed, unsigned contract to determine if an 
employee/employer relationship will exist. If, after review of the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and supporting 
documents, DAS-SAE-Daily Processing concludes that an employer/employee relationship will exist, the 
ILA must either select another contractor that will meet the independent contractor test or use the State's 
third party contract with Temporary Staffing Services to pay the contractor. 

h. After DAS-SAE review, the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and supporting materials will be returned. 



I 

Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit I 240.102 I 7 of 15 I December 13, 2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

I. Contracted services are not to be performed until all signatures are obtained and distribution of contract 
copies is made to the parties. 

j . The contract should specify a starting and ending date. ILA should not enter into a service contract for a 
period of longer than six years (including extensions) unless ILA gets a waiver of the duration limitation 
from the Executive Vice President or Lottery CEO. 

k. Contracts should include a termination clause including a non-appropriation clause. Service contracts 
may cross biennial and fiscal year lines, and, when they do the contract should specifically include a non
appropriation provision. 

I. Create a sufficient number of copies of the contract so that the ILA maintains a copy for its file, a copy 
can be sent to the DAS-SAE-Daily Processing when the first invoice is remitted for payment, and a copy for 
the contractor. 

m. Procedures noted in Item #3 shall be followed as deadlines allow. Any exceptions to the procedure 
timelines shall be noted and documented in the purchase file. 

4. Contract Payments: 

a. The payment voucher (GAX or PRC) or the first payment in a series requires: 
• a copy of the original contract signed by both parties 
• a copy of the completed signed Pre-Contract Questionnaire (PCQ) with the SAE Control #. 
• a copy of the Report of Sole Source Procurement if applicable (DAS-GSE form) 
• a copy of the Report of Emergency Procurement if applicable (DAS-GSE form) 
• the original invoice or original claimant signature. 

b. Subsequent payments shall include the following information on the voucher: 
• The document number and date the initial claim of this contract series was processed through 1/3. 

(The initial claim of the series will have the contract attached.) 
• Original invoice or claimant signature. 

c. Amended contract payment vouchers: 
• Attach a copy of the signed amendment. 
• Amended PCQ, only if the Employer/Employee relationship changed. 
• Make a reference to the document number and paid date of the first payment voucher. 
• On any subsequent payments reference the document number and paid date where the 

amendments are attached. 

5. Object Codes: 
Proper object codes shall be used. When paying attorneys use: 2462 Legal Fees, 2553 Adult Contract Legal 
Fees, 2554 Juvenile Contract Legal Fees. For other contractual services use the proper object code found on 
1/3 on the OBJ table. 

6. Expense Reimbursements: 
When part of the contract includes specifically reimbursing individuals for expenses, the reimbursement shall 
not exceed the limits established for board members (see ILA Procedures #21 0.245 (3) and 21 0.305). It is the 
I LA's responsibility to ensure the appropriate rates are written into the contracts. 

7. Payment vouchers for contracts with individuals must contain the Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN). 

8. When payment is made on a PRC where a DAS-GSE contract is referenced, the ILA is responsible for the 
PCQ and the ILA should attach the Pre-Contract Questionnaire referencing the SAE Control#. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 l 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Page No. 
8 of 15 I Effective Date 

December 13, 2013 

9. Contracts in which the dollar amount is unknown, such as when payment is based on a percent of 
recoveries, certain generic contracts, etc., MUST have the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and the contract signed 
by the ILA CEO, or designee. 

10. Advance Payments: 
See ILA procedure 230.550 #2.g. (1) 

11. Twenty Common Law Factors 
A. Indicators of control by employer 

1. Set hours of work 
2. Full-time work requirement 
3. Set order or sequence of work 
4. Oral or written reports required 

8 Other indicators of employer/employee relationship 
5. Personal service required 
6. Hiring, supervising, and paying helpers 
7. Payment of business or travel expense 
8. Work performed on employer's premises 
9. Furnishing of tools and materials 

C. Indicators common to independent contractors 
10. Significant investment 
11. Realization of profit or risk of loss 
12. Work performed for more than one firm 
13. Services made available to the public 

D. Strong indicator of employer/employee relationship 
14. Continuing work relationship 
15. Paid by hour, week, month, or piece-work 
16. Right to discharge 
17. Right to terminate 

E. Indicators of control by employer 
18. Training provided 
19. Instructions given 
20. Integration 



I 

Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
I 

Procedure No. 
I 

Page No. 
I 

Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 9 of 15 December 13, 2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

SERVICES PRE-CONTRACT QUESTIONNAIRE 
Prepare and submit this form prior to entering into a Services Contract. If the Contractor Is listed on the VCUST with the 
SAE Control Number under Organization, enter the SAE Control Number from VCUST in the space below and submit this 
form with the first invoice for payment. 

1. Department 

Contact --------------------------Phone ________________ Fax _________________ _ 

2. Contractor 

Federal Tax ID or Social Security Number----------------------------------------------------

Address 

4. Contract Period From-----------------
To _________________ __ 

5. Contract Cost: $ ______________ __ 

Source of Funds: State ___ % Fed ___ % Other ___ % Explanation---------------------

Account Codes: Fund Dept ___ Unit Sub-Unit Object __ 

6. 0 New Contract 0 Amended Contract 0 Previous Contract Date ________________________ __ 

For Department Use 

(Attach form 55-8 if not contracting with a corporation) 

Sole Source? 0 Yes 0 No 

Employer/Employee Relationship? 0 Yes 0 No 

If Yes, attach PCQ and signed contract, & forward to DAS-SAE 

Signature of Department Director or Designee 

Typed Name 

Title 

Date 

Generic Contract Number-------------------

SAE Control Number--------------

For Department of Administrative Services Use 

Employer/Employee Relationship? 0 Yes 0 No 

DAS-SAE Signature 

Date 



I 

Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit I 240.102 I 10 of 15 I December 13,2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

r .... SS-8 Q.'S..N:.. 1 ~!tOC04 

Determination of Worker ~tatus for Purposes Fe< IRS VSo onlf: 

flr<."-'.Jmrat >) of Federal Employment Taxes and c-NI.ml>ot: 

a..-a~.T-...y 
Income Tax Withholding Eoi11C61 Roc .. l o ... , 

~nP~wM. 

Pb.:n-.r:lr~n~ p ,...,..Jr..: Manh •:AM fwbncd ~a. \V:.t'\w'• ,.,. 

~··~J.U. ... TcfdtOwtlllliN-.,ifLtr&itltc,c;t( at•1 ,-..dlPe-:daf l'i:M'o nlnj oti.uforuio-..U... 'I' .,.;,...,,..-., o!Lt,rdiPc<d.) 

·r,.-,.,.. rlflft· • ...-.*!.u \V~w'• d1j'bte blltJiv••UTb. ¥b\w'•W?.Jaf~ 

ro~ra'•W rr.onbw ''""'•..b:t. \Y~w· 1 .lim.d• Wtfh7• tVTh. w.ru.·. tu-w 

r.n-·· -'¥cnto,.,..l.~dJ·.u.cw.t I .-,.,,, w:rpofW~"''.r~n.nb. \Y:Aw'• I<CIIIiWHCue-1'~ , .,. •. , .,,.,, a.d're"'"'"- (I r(l 

Not.L U U» Yi'rAl-.M Is d btt'GW"'*OS ;a trm Wen 1\m lt» OM l!.lJ)d en lhb tam, fl"lilr thai\ZilJ, ~zs. Dtd ~I orld<l'Vri:<t~n 

Dinlow<e of lnf....,..;on 

Tllo tllorm.1LOn f'IUM><I en lOom SS a '""f ila <Rxlaoc>1 lo !holm~, .. OO<U. 01 ~JTr """"'"to\" 1o ""~sl tho FIS In lho ~nr.h•OI:n fl'tiClilt.S. 
'"' •"'"'pi>, f yoJ w • woll</, """"'I dl:dal<llho lfl'<moll:ln you f<I>V<I«<> rcrm ss~ 1o l'.o om u !>">"' .,.,,.., •be7,.. rtoi'J.......,.,n"'" 
W flla <2d<BG1 IO ;u.::.t 1111> l".o dol<mfrull>"> f'O:<Z'.f, I you fl'"'~ '""'"'PIIIo i'IO!lTioU>n, WO mTf rd b> U>lo ~ ~)'GUt NqUOIII. S..O 
PIMxy Atllfid l'of':l'.-1< Bl<l'.<li:>'> k iiiJlto oo p&JO o !1:< mn rnlai!Uiln II )'0<1 6> not '11111\I W. ...,...,...,.. dloc- 10 ohr por110S. 6> 
not ,.. r ..... 6S-&. 

P11t1 1-V. N111<n of Foon S!>-8 """' <""'Jfo!o E(l cpmU:m h l'>rts 1-N. PiJ'l V mu:l bo Ct<rf';ll>d I II»_..,, pl!ntli<l o wvt:o cftO>::IIfiO 
tu:IC<NI'S Of Is • S<til!pct""'-11 yOJ <'1'1101 """"' a q .... l:n, <dol '\JnllMiwm• u •00<4 ncl "fVf.' ~ 1"" .-J n>:<o,...... Al< o c;uc<~ll<:tl. ;t."..a<h 
on<l!'~r oh.x.la~ L'o pOll '""' q<>W..on rr.ml><o' d<ruly l!lv~11<1. \'t)h 'fOil' ll':Tis NIT'<> (ar wcrun' r..,.,;J r.d ""11"1"' I'J<>"I.fdkn rJJif'b<r t=< 
oo:l>l """-'l'f'"ml>;lloll'.<> lop d ooch oddt<ri:ll oi'Miab<hoi~lhbl<>m 

mJI Cleooral lnfOimatlon 

' 
ThlsbnbiMinJ<<Trf~tlf. D nn [] Wnor,!o:<WY\:.cl>p;tl<<m>1 _--.:===:r--'" --=== r--

f'09ornJJ~'f ~nJdOi! 

D.pbh)\lUJ r""""{sJ 1o:< U11] 1Ns lcrm(lor ~.)'<<I rcra'r.ld o tlllranll»IRS,)'I>J bcllo\"'fOO o<r<<>O<Y-!<'f roc</<~1• r«m 1m .. 
FG<miV·2, )'0UIIloll'ollllla9'1 ""1<l<""""~""""""~·"''fOJ'""""""'odoroUIIt«:J:L<lilv:lb'jL"olnSj. ------

Tctll niiTt>a ol fi«'Un at>>!"'"""""-'«"'" F<"G'IT1ng r:.a s:m> or siT~ ""'VI: as: 
~wd\llhowt<'<orc«.b lho)<bl 1:1 ~flko'loo 1:1 Bd Cl CrrJfOjl!Kl' ;.,IA!};= ·"'Y""· ,---;0;:::;-0II>;t=· (sf'Odt,l .,---:--:-=,...-
A!I""'Ofl"<f lfl suphgclolumori.IO:<>(TO<C~,ccnlmls, .,IK"-m"""" r<t'ITIIW·f OIFonnti!Ol-loiiSCI_..,<trK<hOd, IRS 

<looi"J .,........m uiiiSI\Ihg>~ h OI)ll:»f\ ~ ~ 1n of <rf<'.ITr<t trp0>110)1lt>-1<<<'«Wg IN w:<ta'•si>IA Una h:<n_. ~.tgl:rnn 
f<mi!Ol i/.SC«W·!l""'ll.trf!>'al ~:>'l» flt:r<f7,orglh>o":'KU'Ialrano..,..,1 1"'-'tOy-"'"\))llll!a» ~--------

.llolh rcrm\'/.2 :rd Fonn IOii.> ~~ sc-o l!211»d a 111<11\'0d,o>p":in •ttJ. ------------------

D<Z'.al»tl>o rrm'sl:<nt'<"o -------------------------------

C.tUio »tool 



I 

Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
I 

Procedure No. 
I 

Page No. 
I 

Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 11 of 15 December 13,2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

2 

mil GMerallntormabon jeontlooed) 

IIIIGYSI<ct I<Crlr<ld PJYI!omrmt~I!Qn tr.O •nl~Jb<il:3.!lOOI 011 .,..,.. SU<II .. I~ "'"·""'9"·l!Cq.bl>Oil,Cif n>ag:nl.l>ISa'lolll» llmk< 

.,.., I' A""'""'., .• pot!OnN<J, piO\<» tno tolo1illg: N:>mo ol t:~ tlrn'< fQ'1<L• <Non<r. - = ---=:-----;:----
AWruio.,·swJ>ll"'l:lorM:.l!b"nnt:u: G"'"9>wzo: O &:~.> 0 Llo<9lf0 Jlo1.1<r.on 0 A~w•tm 

o ot~·~~~n·----------------------------------------------------------
~~«~~a~'--------------------------------------------

10 Dlo1 1'o ~""' p<l!«m ""'~ Iorino lirmlnOI!)'Ci>fO'If)'IKf«• P'"'ldng \"<> W\\Cosll>ol orol'o SLifO<t<l lllo c!ol"rrilulltro roqtmt~ 
0 v .. 0 HO 0 IUA 

~ ·vz; W"ol •.,.,.tnoc!>tr.soiL""~"' -?---~-:--:---:------------------
If •vz: ~n t'~dft.er.t"c.m, tt:nr. b«'NWGnlt~ cl.lm~nt.vw::l p-'bl f,;r;l\~ ------------------· 

11 r 1110 wu<ll o:oo or<1a o W"~twt~ "'JJ""""'' I:<Ihl"'" ll»lfmond U»,..,~oo<, o~:n occpf pnntfy •!Jn<" lly 1>«/'1 p:rii>'J. o.,..,t»lh• 

l<nn5;r.dc<rAl!llnsofi' .. 'IIVkon•~m;nl. --------------------------· 

IZIIJ BMavloral ConltOI (PrOYlde names and~ or spec1nc lrxl'11<!ua>s. n app~e.) 

W"'-spo<flon-rtngo>n<l'brhslr.'Ciknlll"oworu.rg\<~~t1JII»Ilm'l ____________________ , 

2 IIOwdo<I>Y-"WO'I.o!lllCI>~"·OI~;zdjjn':""'""7 ----- ---------------------

Yf";,l t1posol ref"'!• or• "'1·1ro:l l!«n II» v.ll<t".;(7 Nt.octl<lnriJI"'·--------------------· 

At wl\lllx<r.Of\':1) do<l> tho -l.or pgrlam ""'*"' ~« .. ~., l<m'> ~r-. ov.n •1»9 or Cllloo. nom>, rus11:rrw .. -)? illd'colo 
f'O"!'~I!<I:fOJ>"'t""'"'!J"of lh» lhOWOrtor~hr.od'lloc~JOn. llr.ootiiWIOCO •. ______________ _ 

a ~too mr rr""'lrlJS tho ..... ~ Is r;qlii'Ild lo .>IW>l >t>l ""I p<~~;it~;o !«not OIIM>dllg ~ •"'"flo, """'rr....o-gs, rrx:rlrlf rn>Gthgs. 

sti'I~N>;~~gs).===========-------------------------------;=;;-;;::--;:;--;;~ 
lstr.owo.11ar.>1 ;1'0i:IIDp<011I!Oitlo...,..l:oJ""""""'Jf1 . . . 0 Yos 0 H0 0 

10 
II 

12 
n 

rSlJI>s~ ll/."' (( b<tpas ... - . """ HlosthG<n? ====----------------.,.-:;:;---;;=;-:;:.,
flhov.<n:cthtzl':llsu!EtA.~orhO'Jl"'S,Iso~roq\fr<>fl 0 Yos 0 HO 

I ' YIJJ,'tlf Whcm? ___ .,------------------------------· 

Vf"o pilfS 1110 P.t~M;.o a t<I'J>Orr'l _-:-:-:--:-:--:--:--:--------------.,-= ::---;:;--:-:
ls l>o...rotarrlrrb....,H it.o lOVI.or pilfSthO!>,bo'I IW.S or~o\:on1 .. • . . • . . •.•.• .• 0 YH 0 No 
v "Yz .. b wrtcm7 

r .... SS-8 ,_, .• ''" •l 



I 

Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit I 240.102 I 12 of 15 I December 13, 201 3 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

3 

llUJIII FinanCial contrOl (PrOVlde namE-S anel Liles or ~rk: tiCIIIIJcJUa13, 11 f!WliCab~.) 

liSt thO "·fft""· "1"'\'<ll<d. ll'U.lil/hll, one! P'~/ fl<>M>d t:l'f lil<tl p.Tiy. 
T~lrn: ______________________________________________________________________ ___ 

~wor~·-----------------------------------------------------------------------
~··~~· --------------------~------------------------------------~~~--~---Do<lsii»M>IWI>;zooqllp<rUll , lf<KG,C:UilJ:rty'l . .••• • •.• . • •• .. . . ... 0 Yoo 0 No 

I 'Ya;,'\O!Sll ;N(~ li>rmsol!llO _.,{/<Hom • ""'t a•>PZ~<Jioryrotom;<11) -------------------------------· 

't.t.oi .. ,P'"""' :rolt>:uol>d tlf ll»wtl.« h til.> p<:r!oJTr.rK:., ot c...n: .. Ia II» tlm'l ____________________________ , 

• spoc:ry ~..i:h, ~ ;ry. "'~""" .,. r.o'!nb.rso1 ty: 

Tho I~.~----------------------------------------------------------------------
~~·~·-------------.------------..--------------.~---------------.----------Tl'f»Oiply~-'>wor.wrr .. :c.\'<G. D 5.lL1ty D C<rrml>sl>!> 0 tb-rlyl\'>!}> 0 PIOOOWOO< 

D ~~s~ D ~g~~~ ----------~~----~-----.---------------------
1 ll'f» at 1"'1"' ~on. or>:! t"J>l~ 9"""'J"" omt>tmm ¥T>xnl cA p;tt, >poc:;ly :rroort. 

i tiltJ>II'WICFlt'c"'"hdt7Nng..:<oorH:r .. t;;r.<<lJ7 • • • • . . . . . . • . . • . .•• 0 Yoo 0 No 
r 'Y"'.' t.llwon..,? __________________________________________________________________ _ 

spoc:ry""" nzsl ~<'lorrs .. _ _______________________________________________________________ , 

Vl/"om~>O>tl>oCilllc:<T>iff<r(l. • • • • • • • • 
l100rt.:<, doa:CCG1HJ'GI P~fC\Oiol.>' anc>U"l tolll01lm7 D y.,. 

0 Vlcrt.r.r 

I llo«< ll»llmQII'f """l«•' t<rTf"llSlr".onln:<r:nc .. onll'JO....:d<JT7 .......• • . 0 Yoo 0 No 
0 V.t.ol o:<XlO<'Io lms cr &1\Y\dll rlsl:, I"""· em tno ....:tllrl ha.r b>j"Cnd II» nomullo<K Clls:t:ry pa <runpio, 1om or cS:m>g> ol oql!pm«d, 

"ciV-~7 ______________________________________________________________________ ___ 

10 llo«< l l»wort<tzl:tllsh e"J> Iov,.ol~lrorfho...v\::<ISp-®i><loct"oplt>dlds":.:.n •.... . .. 0 Yoo 0 No 
~ ·tb; .. hod.......-7 __________________________________________________________________ _ 

~ Reialloo5111p Of lntt worker anel Firm 

Pll3» <:r.odlll>O WJOIC.. OMt;tto 10 tno vo:<"ur. [] Pal:l ""':tl<r" 
D Pa-..a...rd"l" Cl Fl;rul:ns 

D O!l>;r (<fOCIIJl 
e;,n tt<> t<l~nsttp-::.,.=,.=-rmhll=7:«~=tl'f-o"'lh<e=-=p>tty=-... =lllo=,:-:II-,.,=Ullt:=-.g""L>:>T="'ry,-o"'r"'J><N=r.-::-.(l-::---------.--.--.--. --. --. "'o"""v"' .. --....,o""'No~ 

~ 'II>; <cr~)'JUI :rc,._,, -----------------------------------------------------

OUII'o"""""'p<ll.:<mslll1lu""'lc.;G!O<othvsdU11>g~o tmop><»jor'"""'llP:I1 1, tnol1 . . . . . .. 0 Yoo 0 No 

W'Y..,,"istno-roqJ~lidto!I-'IOW<mf lram!":.>Crn? •• . • ••••••••.....• 0 Yoo 0 No 

4 ll<l:ai:<>""J' ")"""""Is p-oll«ngc~tbn boi>I~Xn thG v.OO<u ~Y>1 'f'.<~ lrm•lll> lho~u t: pcTIO'rrir;J """"'"'«~.rti>J onJr:t.« 
P"b-:1. •\~h :WJ :tt.'01103iUa dc:oCI.I"rQrt;,alkn. 

ro.tto- orr<nllc.IC>la U'J:a? .••••• ••. ••••••• • ••• • • • 0 Yoo 0 No 

6 V~>JII)f<> o! <>JiVUohg, ! <rrf, Cl!>oslto WO"tor do ~or ODITfiO, • ~ lsll".q h • droctil<f « tu.:JIO!Z C<lld'l7 Pr""~' OCflr.s, d 

~~ --~----------------------------------~--------------------
~ tho "c<t;u =btos ot p<~ • fllt>du:t ol rom>. aM f'O.!<l<Z 11» ....:t<lllls :r.d ~tlx.s or f'lll"'n7 --------------

I 't/1'01 doo<; l!'.V 'MX11ll' ~) V.!ll1 'f'G fn~JXI fl'od.CI f\>1 <mt>fiG,I.:Iutn l to tho fl'm, f"'MdDit IO ::n<LI>;r p.TI)'. 0 1 .... 1 ft)? - --------

0 Hc.Wdoui t.Girm t'fl'E'IKI1I Itli1~at.-r tot!s O.~S(br WXolllipli , ~.pt.)W, pilJ\n rl', riOpr.;wt.:HIGi, C.f OiXlr~, IIDj LID'i;c Y\00~ 

t7~~ Nrr»dCKG t...U Jm"t.JN pG~~~CD'7 -------------------------------------------

tO ~ t~ "00<" no 1x19" po71<rms ...... ~:o• tor tl» ll'm. haN d'd thO roblknslllp ooo par g;np., -r.or qllt « •~ It .:<I, Job cctmp•l<>.l. 
oo...,.O>."'Il"<!O!I, nnn cr.....-... ....,., a.-1o1 ""''""''!? _ _______________________________ __ 



I 

Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
I 

Procedure No. 
I 

Page No. 
I 

Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 13 of 15 December 13,2013 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

runss..t(IW.IH>II} P•r4 
m:£1 for servtco PrOVI<Iera or Sllespenons. CO!np!ete tnts part 11 the walker prO'I'lde!l a Ee.'Vk:>!! !lle<:tly to 

CU&!Om«ll OilS 8 sai€WfSO!l. 
""-"I :t'OIIIOWOII<U .. ' '4"'""'1>lllmtn <Oidllog n;wo~rt? -------------------

2 'I~.O pnl\~ltO WOCI-"11'111~ lop1>"..po<UIDCUOiorn;a7 -------------------

OQoatiG urr ropattg r>q 4ltmio'S p;rutloJ io lhol;aclo. ·---------------------

4 YI'<IJ I""" Olldcoo:l tb".llcl..,;,. R:r:y, DIQI.;quNd l>ylho nnnl --------------=---= -
Ar>«~s~.tml::o;<I ID:11ci<Ubp<l~"fP"'~ Ilf lt>DA'm7 . • • . • • . • . 0 Yeo 0 No 

'I~D dV~MS itMI ~~~fi .. WM~7 ----------------------~--~-
Il':1 1to"""11"~ 1«~ilpiVl><JDd<On1oJ C"'Iom:i<Onll>o ro~oU O<hiiiG I<tr\IQJ(I . 0 Yeo 0 No 

l ~z." ~cmddU» ~~tM~------------------------------
w·vz: rowm.chddll»'llll i\UfXJ'(I • . . . • • . . . . . . . . ' ·--------

• Y/r<Jod>o> lliOWOII< <t sdllhop<O<Iud ~O<IOI~O.h o te<n>, tollii iMtlllblm>rql ______________ _ 

o ·~I ll» F~ ""1 1>< s<M<m dl:;'tt.J1 0<1 tiJ roo 1171.\>1 t« owrpll, """· \IO(l •'~.rn.a. t<lb ty fn>d<ms, b>\~~. « WI!> :I'/ a riy 
clo;rlnJ ""''COO). II M><o ltun oc" tJPO or pro<IIY. I <r.C.'« wvl::o ls dblrtl.!ll<l, <pocly IT.o P')ldp<tono. -----------

10 
II 

12 

IJ 

Ocm lti> IIOit<t...alb t~JolnOO II/I t:m>7 •.. . . . • •.. .... • • • • . 

OOfd \t» wror\M ~ C'lt" t)p;G af t'oSVRn:G '« tl'g rm? • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 

f ~IZI.' <Ill Ill ro pu<<r!.l<JOOI II» .. .,.tM<'!i VJ'~ VKII<I'g ll'llo<p<tll b SO I":: <r.'<>ll)l'O>ollnRn"CO • 
!l thov-m u ~ ctdcts tom 'ftMb~ n;;b'J;ts, co-.~tocJ. oropwtillcn cl hoD>~, rml3..r.uos, OtCTr.Mf sr:tbl 
cR:Ibl>llln>nls, ll'lol lt>D F<>rt'«II~JO allt<l wodlfl'> lml<prt' l h lho I>O(Icl'oUkn • • • • • • 

I<: It O =rtt.>n:~SG pzthz<d t<J ltiOC\nlan= l>lf NQ!.>C)( 11'.0 fn l"at tml"""C'P"f%l>n>1 . , 
OQoat\l !f»rr=IWIGO> <rll ,;'->lo~IKI• t: oqlf~m<nl t'5'.JJOd on ll>o o$.cmm' ~.orrfs<>s. 

0 YM 

0 YM 

O tto 
Otto 

------~ 

" -=o,....v-.. --=o=-tto 

UU.. F...ru. ' cl f¥JI'1.14od.• tho I tor .. -..,;-od f u ~RI.d,.' ...........,;_".! o!o<vnro , .,juohobo~ cl nTI"-....!odq.,n H ... u, lloo 
Sign ~_,. ~"-,..~..,. ... .,..,.,..., on~ """f ... 

Horo ' 1""' .. ,.... ...... bob..q--.. ------------- Do!· • - --- -



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
14 of 15 I 

Effective Date 
December 13, 2013 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Generollnstructions 
Sed.ion ~.lrnrus ''"' to the III!M»>Ik •..roe Code &.nol<-..s 
orhono,;,., noted. 

Purpose 
rnr, on! v.oritOfS fle ronn SS li to roqo~" det<mirollion of 
tho ot>Ns of a we<l:a lor purp<Y...,. of le<!o<ol Oftl>kymerl t;u., 
~ incomo l;u wilhhcld' ng. 

r~J.:i~~~~~!:lrF::!~~..::.~ ~:~d~to 
)"Nl I« v.tlich the st.>tul<> al rm,lllioro on the t.u •~llln ha> 
~." d<!onnirAiion kfl,.. w.ll not be Mued. I~"' >~.>!Ute of 
fimil.>!ion> ~ 3 yeor~ frcm the d uc d>le of the t.u return « 
the dlle filed, whi<IIO\'<f iob!<t. 

The IllS daM nol ;._,."-"' " det<tminalion lttt<t lor propo-..od 
tr>Mol<1ions or on h'IPOihetic.-.1 s~uotions. VIe mOl)', h...,-,...,, 
iwJe an infOfn'illiatifotl<t ....,en ~ i> C>OIIsoood apprapr'..Ue. 

Definition 
Firm. For the P<I'J>O<O<> cl lhi> lam, !he term 'f.rm' """"' ""Y 
ird~. bu:ines<~ enle<pri>e, org¥lilolion, s\ole, or <>lhtr 
«!lily fO< vmr.h • 'I'I'Orl<tr ha•ll«<crmod ~c ... '~ fwm mOl)' 
or mOl)' not h.we pajd lho W<>rktf directly lor lh.,, ~icM. 

m ll !l>efrm,.-..snotr~ fat~lor 
sen~ be:'""' ro Ml« th<! name.,~..., ord 
enpv.rer id<..nli(><<~!ion llU'1lbcr oltl>e ~.rer on 1m 
miPJ900i formSS 8, bc.'ow lheid:nllyi"g 

nom»! 'oM lor lhe f11m IV>d tho ,.w~.e~, 

Tho Form SS-9 Determination Proooss 
The IllS wll od.,owlodge rhe re«;'pl cf yaJr form SS-8. 
~"" lhtto "'".,.~two (or ma<•l ~1ieo vmo co<Jd be 
o!lectod I:IJ "dettrmt'llbonol errel->)ment _u,, the IRS 
o>!IOftl>ls to get iolcnnolicn from al p.111binwl\ood IYtocrdl'l:] 
thc<>e ~ b/or.k FomnSS·81ore<>mddion. St!Mor a! ol 
the infonnalion f<O'Ii:led on lh'• r 01m SS·9 may be oh;uod wilh 
the o'.her pDttb listed ro Jl<lr- 1. lt>o c.w> "'" bo a7..igr.od too 
tochnici>n ...t.o wl1 r.W..N the f~. apr:r/v !he Llw,....:t r.nd« o 
d«i-.icn. TholcchnkiOI\mll)' a!Jtlor odc!Oorul infam>!ion '""" 
the ""'"""IO<, Irnm cth« invol-tod p.¥1iM, ar from lhrd portO.,. 
tho! could help d;Wy the worl< rebtoo.hip bolaf<l rondering a 
d«Bicn. The IllS ,.ilgcr.er.~fy izuo" ft'lmol d<leminolion to 
the firm"' Jl<l'J<f Of tho! ;, a dfi<f<rf entity),....:! w·u..,...d • 
COfl/ to~..,"'""'"'· A dettrmination lct10< W"'' <>Nt too 
"""'"'(or a clo.o of "or!<«•) req..,.,;tng it. oWl the &.:bien i> 
IMndfl!l m rhe lllS.In c<>rt.:~n ... ,..... o IO<mol d<r«milhtlion 'Ail 
not be o,;ued. ln,.,ead,"" inlc<rnotion Iefler m..y be ;,,.Jed. 
l\l!houqh"" irtormotion lo~~or i• od.i><><y onlj....:!;. not bnong 
on rh<! lRS, ~ m~y be used to o~>i•t the waktt to Mill hi> aM 
led<rol tu C!b'lg~ 

tleilher the r orm SS 0 delermina!ion P""""" r« lho ,..,;.w 
of ortJ rocords in conn<dion v.\th l~c dettrminoticn constih.te> "".,.,,.,.1ic!n c-:liQ r:l ""Y federal t.u re: .. n.lf !hep<rio<h 
t.ndef C<lf<lidffillicn ""'" pte'Muo}/ been Ol111mined, the rorm 
SS·B d eltrminolic<> proce .. wil nC>I coreit.Ao o roe>M>inoticn 
111dtf IllS <eop<f'ing procedl.rM. Tloc.auoe !IC is nol illl 
..,.,._.,n:,tion of any I~ t;u reolum, the "PP'<"" fi:1h!.s ovolob'e 
in cmnection 'Airh"" oxaminoticn do not apply too form SS 8 
d<lormination. IICYA'O'IN, l )"" do.>gree 'llilli o d<!orminotion or 
)'0'1 M\'0 l>d<ftionol ir.lormolicn CUK:orri"l} ~.., we<k 
roblianohip rho! yw bef.-1e w:>> not pr.-.,.,..,~ conoidorod, you 
m"Y r<q'JOSt that the det«mining office re<:oolider rho 
de!Ofminolicn. 

5 

Completing Form SS-8 
An.wu oil 'I'I"'Wd 1:15 CCfr1Jiol</ya> pc>Gsiblo. Allllch 
odd~ionol oheets ~)'Oil r«<f l'll«e •fl"oe. PnMde inl<>rmi>lian 
for 111 Y""'"the v.-m« prO'Mod <.<n<ce> for tho firm. 
~«~Tit>Mi:>n> oro bosed on rho ero\i:c r<l..tomh'p be(o,...., lhc 
rum ....:! the ... r~. .... /lk>o indicotc ~ rhoro ..-..-e ""Y <igMicott 
cit~ in the"""" rebtionship O'o'Of the ~ce t«m. 

M citiorol c.cpb cl ~~ lonn m:ty be obbinod on lllS.gov or 
!:It cwfng 1·900·TAX·FOIIM (I .000-0:19..XrG). 

Foo 
There is nofeelor "''fJ!»~ • Form SS Bdetormin;,ticn letter. 

Signature 
f orm SS 8 m"'t be~ ard dolod t1J the t;:up<r).,. h 
sl.vrf>od oigMI .. e .. ;r no1 be occeptod. 

The perocn who oigrD fa a oorporoll!ion rr . ...t beanofl'our ot 
thocorporalicn "ho has per""""'l<novl.edgo of the I:Kts. HIM 
c~rporotion;, • momber of"" oHibted group fit:ng • 
tcn>did.>lod rot11n, ~ m.~>! be signod ll1 on offour of the 
c~mmc.n paR<~t of~"' gra<.JP. 

lhe ~on •i]ning for~ \riY.;t, partr..,<h'p, or fm'od liobl'rty 
ccmpli'IJ nw•11>e, r<>Spe<tivolf," tngtee, a..-.J pari nor, e< 
m<tnber'flli1t\l9"f who has pt<Scnollo.ra .. fodge of the IKU. 

Where To File 
Sand the c«npetod and oignod rorm SS-9to the oG*~s 
belaN lot rho firm's loc.>lion. Fouod, photocopied, or otectJC<'io 
Yt<Sion• of rorm SS·8 .,., nc:4 ~lofer lhe iniliol ~t 
for the Furn SS 0 del«mn.lion. llowe,,.., uty for caoes 
irnool.inglodtrol ogencioo. ..end Fum SS-9 to the n!trnal 
n.-,tn~s.,..•cc, Nln: CC:OOPP:T:C, lkn fruf<lln St;W,n, 
P.O. llox 7001, \YIIShngton, DC 200.tl. Do noloubn\1 form 
SS·8 with yourtu "tum osthal wil de14yproe.uing lilM. 

Flrm'a Toea boo: send to: 
AWk.1, lviJON,AtbMos, 
C:o'ilornD, Colorado, ll>w:oi, 
~. llincis, l..,.-., l<u&'ls, 
ll.'r~. Msocui, t.lorun>. 
II~ .b. ~do, IIO'N 
lk>i<o, ~lcrth ~"' 
QI.J.Y>orno, Or ego<\ South 
O.kolo, Tcxu, Utoh. 
Washinaton, Wiscoo:in, 
\V)IOflling, Amoric:an Sarnoo, 
GJOm, Puotto Ilk<>, U.S. V•g'n 
I:Ji:lf>ds 

ln!trnal n..,...,.,., StrVice 
rcrm SS-B ~trmn.lbns 
P.O.Box030 
Slop rot 
lloltsvlle, NY t 1 742·~ 

lnltrnol n..,......., Sorvice 
Fcfm S&O ~ttmN1io~ 
40 u.komont fl>od 
llewport, Vf O:.llur I Ch~ 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
15 of 15 I 

Effective Date 
December 13, 201 3 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Instructions for Workers 
H )'Oil <lie r«JJe<.ting a dol"""h>lioo lor mot<! thn Clt1e finn. 
corrflote a ocpome r O<m SS. Blot ...U. rum. 

m rorm SS-8 is ror a ~w.. f« ..Sund of OO<i.:II-Wiy 
l>f>d hlc<M= t.:u~· 01 ~~income,.... 
... itMording. 

"the ms detemirt>s lhot ycu ... Qtl ompl"""". ycu""' 

:~u.~~~"::A'~~=:~~~=~~ 
<mfloo;ee doM not nMe-".&11ly r<>duce onycLnMI ct J:lior Ln 
fiotxfty. f er mao infC<roobon. e<~I I ·OO'Hl29-11)l0. 

rme for filing a clm ftw refund. GMer.t ly, you musr rlo )'OUr 
do>im lor a aod't orr.!or.d w'.lhn 3 )'e>~ r.om the d>te yru: 
origin;,! reNm "'"" filod 0< 1\i'.hn 2 yo= from the CW.e tho lu 
"'"" p.id. ~ .... i>l>l«. 
Filing Form S$-8 dOH not ~wnt the nprAbon of the time 
in wiUclt 11 cloim lor a reiiMiclrr&~sl bo filed. If '("U "'" 
oonc<!lnod ilbo<Jt " rehn:l, ond the >toiL.te c( lm~otk.-.> lor ling 
" daim lorrelund lor the )""'(•) >I ;,......,., hos net )'01 e>:pirod, 
)"<~J !h:>vld fJo rorm 10~0X, ~dod u.s. lrdv.du>l lncorno 
T:u ll<llln,lo ptotect yocr !:l•lule ollimitllicn>. Flc>ll ~'Ole 
f Dm1 1010X Iotaxh )""'· 
~the Fo<m tO lOX you n ... do r.ot compe!e rne. 1 !Mlug'l 

?'2 m the form. Wme 'J1101ecti., Cf.>im• .>1 the t<p ol the l<><m. 
oign ""d dolo ~. In ~li<ln. ent« the lolo·~ing •t.>lemfl\1 n 
P.>rt Ill: ' Fled l'e<m SS·8 ....til the L-4o1NIIk'l......,. s..vi<e 
Offc<> in (l lolt...illo, NY; ll<"~porl. VT; or \V..!Jington. DC;"' 
"PP'OfA'i>tol. ll'f flh]t~i!J prolect;., cL>;m, lr...-.....ve the rigtt to 
llo ~ cbrn lor U>f relund tNt m•y bo <Ne ahot a doton rinoli<ln 
of trtf eft111oyn'.<N WI rtll\1• hu beM comJ:l<ted.• 
Filing Fo.-m SS.8 dOH notolter the require mont to timely Re 
on incomo tu r.tum. Do not dday firng ) 'OUI' tox rotUtn in 
.vll~nolllllonswor to ycll r onnSS·II r«JJC'..I.In 
~. ~ "Pffie<~l:lo, ~· not doloy.., re.pondlng to 11 r"'P"JI 
lot PJ'IIT<ffl ..til• wailrog lor a deiormh>!ion of )'O<It V.'Oikot 
a.:rtus. 

Instructions for Firms 
H a worter hu r"'JJI<!>Iod a det«rrin.>lion ol his<>< he< •btU> 
\\tilo wooong for you, ) \>U wJir«~e 0 requtsl from tt" lltS to 
comlfoto • r orm SS·8.1n c:.>~ oftl-4s typ<>, the UIS ll'IJolfJ 
g;,,. eil<h p>lly ~ 09P.''Ilrily to fl.,..,., a ot.>l...,.... ol the 
bru bec:.>u-.e OT'f doct>icn 'Aii oliect tho ~<11mont t.n 
.utu• ol the~ f'oi~J ... to r.-..pc.-od to thiS r«J ... •I wJI nc.t 

~:':!t:: hoo~~~~,~=~:',~""..S:k: the 
moy fulfil his or h01 Ioder .a t.u ol:ligolicM. How ... ..,, !}-,. 
irlormoticn thAt ycu pto\(d!!;., ~xtrtm.ly v.>'wblo in 
dott<minng tho <lol<r< of the V~<>d:or. 

H yw""' r<qiJO'J~ng" dot<mlinolion lor • pvticul>r clos• ol .,.,n.,, eotrfloto tt-.. lofm lot c...., ird;,idJ.>I v.ho i• 
repr..-...,toliw of tt.e cr ... of wctl<ers ....... ....... is .. 
que.licn. H )'OU w..,t " Y~mton d<-!"""noticn lor mclfo th>n on<> 
~~ d W<ltl:eB, c.omF~ete 4 up:Atilte rarm SS..9 1ot ona 
\\<>d:t< lrtwn eoch claso "AtuA 51.>1u• h l)opic;ol cA lh<>1 d .»s. h 
\\rill on dctt<mnolion lor o.:-rt woder •Ail ow ly to <>lh« wo•k-= 
of tho,...,.. clu~ ~ tho fact~ Q/e not m.>lcri>'ly dfiO<ttl l Ia 
tl=e workt<s. ~ pr<M:lo a list ol """"'" ond oddr.,...e> of 
.,, work<ts p<lentiofy ollectod by I tis dotctm1rvtion. 

References 

H.!:~ hove a rc••sonol:le b>>i• fe< nott~g o wod:...,. "" 

~-(:o,);~~~~~J:.mto3'0:.t'~fe"laii'~ 
Act. II.,.,......,.., this ref<f prcniskn connot bo c.onsoood n 
c~.ction wilh • r orm SS.B det«mino~cn b«ilUSO the 
ckl«mrob>n d>M not OGn•tituc on cJU~mirobon ol ortJiil.l 
relum. f « more iniO<m:llion r09or~ OC>dicm c.30 Gf the 19ta 
n .. ,..,..,. /let ond to do!O<mm a you qo.y'ify for rdicl iJI>def thi• 
sodi<n, ,;,.-, lflS.gO't. 

Princy Actond PopeMort Roduttion Att Nolie<>. VIc ask lot 
the in!Ormoli<ln on le<mSS·Bto COIT'f cui Itt> hlt<nolll~mue 
ly~., of the Unilod Slot<». lli!J inlc1m.>licn wll be U>od to 
ckl«mm tho eft1JI"'fT""'ol mlu> of the .,.'OI!<e<(s) 6.-..c:lbod 011 
the !atm. Subtf.lo C, l:rrpJeo,.,...,llo<<», ol tho lntO<nolllc,...,uc> 
Cod<> irr.poo .. <mp<'l~l Lnc~ on -~· indud'"'iJV!torno 
louwiiU'ddrog. Secti0ns312 1(~. :mc.(oj, ond :l<IOI(c)~ (d) 
ond thereblod "'9'/:olicn> clefi'M omplo),., ..,d ~~oyO< Iot 
po.1po:o= of eiTf'll)mttllt.~ .. imF..od unO:< Subtillo C. 
Secti<n 0001 llUihcri,reo the llS to ~ueot i-/arm>liorl n<>odod 
to detOim'r.e if " 'A<>d:oc{•J Cf rvm ;, ... t;,oct to ther..c tiUM. 
S odicn 6100 req..Or<» you to piO\icle yru: l.u:p<>yO< 
;d...artc'lf;on nurrob<!l. Noil~.e< work<= nor r.., ""' teqJi-odlo 
requMt <> >1.>1us detorm'no1ior1, but ~ you chov..e to do so, ) 'OU 
m<l'~ f"OVY.k lhoirlormoticnte<pC!"..tod on thi• fe<m. f .¥1 .. c to 
~ethe reques1od inlotmoli<n may p....m u• lrom molo'ng 
" oto.l\ls dotcrmin:Won. II ony workH 01 It" frm 1\»r~ed o 
otlt\n deteflninat<cn ..,d you"'" b<>'r.g ..,.,.ed to r«>vklc 
O.le<million le1 u-..o n tNt detetrril\'llion, yll<l ore not requrod to 
ptO't>1~ the reqU<>!:Iod inlormotien. IIOWC\'01, llil .. oto prcnicle 
•uch inlonn.otion wJI pr...-0111 the IllS Item ceomicleting ct in 
mo>\ing the !rtA!Us cler01Tnin.11ion. Pru .idng L>'>e <>< lroudllent 
nfornw»n 1n:rf subject ) 'OU to p<n.>hi.._ ~/.we reNms 
and retum irlomuti«< Dt c c~ti.:tl, Oli ~.ired by S«:tkwl 
GIOO. IIo"A'O'ffi', sediorl &100 <> f0'1>-, er roqJrM tt.eli1Sto 

~~~odt~~t,'U,~~~,:'~!f.h;~ .. n lo 
informolion w.:ude p<ooliding ~ lo the O.p..vtm011 t of Justice fe< 
u><> in ci.il ond amnol f!ti!j<lf;on, to the SoOol S<>curily 
Actn'r.il:troric-n for the ll¢rini!lroli<ln of ooc:i>l s«>~ily 
prcg'Ocm. ar.d to c~ si.>IO<l, the llsi/Kt d Cducrbi.>, ond 
U.S. corM>Onweollho lind ~..,,.,....., 10< the odrriniolrolicn of 
lh<ir t.u r.~. Wo :Jr.o m7f disclose tti• in!Citfmlicn to other 
cctll!riM urdor 11 lox liMy, to fodor>l ond •t.>le ag<neie<> lo 
<fllorco Ioder .a nonllu crmh>l low•. orlo loderol low 
e.-lor'""""'' ond n tolrJr-<>00 ogcrcieo to comh>t t<norism. Yl<> 
m:rJ pO\ido this rlomutiorl to the alfoclod WC><ktf(s}. th<> r.rm, 
cr f'lY« ;os J>"'' altho otml• delormination proce-.;:L 

You ore not r~rod to proolide the n c<motion roqoJe>tod on 
o lormthol i5 out>; oct lo the Popcrwak lloducticm llr:t unlc-c..o 
tho fc<m osfJI~'I' o \~d OMO cCf'bol runt«. llodt~ a 
rcoordo ffio1ing to o lam or its in•truclions trrJ>I berot.>'nod • • 
long"' thoir c«JJonl.s may !><como maloti> I in the 
admnslr.llion of ar'f/lrtotnol n .. ,.,ll .... low. 

! he fmo n<>odod lo oomp..!e ond flo ttis Fam SS 9 \\il vory 
~cfr.g on incf'"!uol circUMI>nc~. I he ..-~rnoled '"''"'"ll" 
lome os: R«or~. 231vs .. C(J mn.; L=~ ~boliltho low 
cr the le<m, 1 ht., 49 riin .; f'rop;>ring lh<> fotm, !i hrs., 03 m.'n; 
and Sendng the fonn to tho IllS, 49 rrin. K )'OUt.,,, comm.onl~ 
c.cnocming tho occtXacy of tm:~ tion~ ~~m~t~ or ~ l>.?]~t~>n' 
lot ~Qr.g th i• IA<m om p cr, VI'<> \\'O'Jd bo l\owj tO h<>Oi lccm 
)'Cik Yt:U c0111 v.-rite to ~ k\lernal He\oenJe SefV)::;.e, fax 
f'rod<>.-ts Coonfn>ling Committee, Sf:YI;CM :IIP:I :M:S • 
1111 Con<ll <.Cic-n Ave. 1-l.V. 11 ()~6, w,.tingiGt\ OC2®4. 
Donct..ndlhotu l<l'm totti!l addres<S.Ir<Steod, seel\'ho/e To 
Tilo on P•9" c.. 

Guidelines for purchasing procedures are located in the 99G(21) and 531 Iowa Administrative Code, Chapter 2 
Purchasing. 

This policy supersedes all other policies previously issued regarding purchasing. 



To: Terry Rich 
Mary Junge 
Herman Richter 
Michael L. Fitzgerald 

From: Brenda Nye 
Lily Kryuchkova 
Karen Milan 

Date: December 6, 2013 

MEMORANDUM 

Mike Klappholz 
Deb Burnight 
Matthew McDermott 

Cindy Weber 
Jonathan Fokken 

RE: MICROSOFT DYNAMICS GP SOFTWARE WITH IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES AND SUPPORT 
REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS {RFP) EVALUATION 

Iowa Lottery RFP IL 14-01 for Microsoft Dynamics GP software with implementation services was issued 
on October 15, 2013. Proposals were received from: 

lnterDyn BMI of Roseville, Minnesota 
McGiadrey LLP of Des Moines, Iowa 
QCI of Clive, Iowa 
Summit Group Software of Sioux City, Iowa 

The proposals were evaluated against the criterion of the RFP and were scored based on cost, vendor 
experience and personnel, technical requirements and completeness of submission. 

Three out of the four vendors were determined to be responsive to the requests outlined in the RFP. In 
scoring the three responsive vendors, each demonstrated the ability to assist the Iowa Lottery with the 
setup and implementation of Microsoft Dynamics GP software. QCI stood out from the other vendors 
by providing more detail about the transition services they will provide and a more detailed work plan. 
They provided excellent letters of reference and described their willingness to work collaboratively with 
the Iowa Lottery on all aspects of the project. 

In evaluating costs, QCI also offered more competitive pricing than the options presented by the other 
vendors. 

Based on factors of cost, experience, attention to detail and willingness to collaborate, it is the 
committee's recommendation that QCI be selected as the vendor for implementation services and 
support of Microsoft Dynamics GP software for the Iowa Lottery. The evaluation committee is 
requesting the Board's approval of the contract included in your packet subject to the completion of a 
successful background investigation and non-material changes or additions to the contract. The contract 
is for an initial term of December 2013 through September 30, 2015 with up to five additional, one-year 
option periods. 



Single Proposal Price $146,680.00 $47,900.00 $150.100.00 

MAXIMUM WEIGHTED McGiadrey QCI Summit 
COMPONENT POINTS SCORE SCORE Score Wei9hted Score Weighted Score Weighted 

COST 600 points available 
3.3 Cost 600 • 1.00 = 600.00 30% 0.33 198.00 1.00 600.00 0.32 192.00 

TECHNICAL 1 ,400 points available 

3.2.5, 3.2.14 Vender staffing abilities- 10.0000 • 3 "' 30 1.9 19.00 1.9 19.00 2 20.00 
# of staff available 

Firm Proposal Terms 
3.2.6 Vendor experience- 13.3333 • 3 = 40 1.5 20.00 2.5 33.33 1.5 20.00 

technical experience/references 
3.2. 7 Vendor Personnel Experience 66.6667 • 3 = 200 1.5 100.00 2 133.33 2 133.33 
3.2.8 Vender Financial ability 10.0000 • 3 = 30 1 10.00 2.1 21 .00 2 20.00 

3.2.9 Terminations, Litigation, Debarment 16.6667 • 3 = 50 1 16.67 2 33.33 2 33.33 
4.3. 1 Hosting 13.3333 • 3 = 40 2 26.67 2 26.67 2 26.67 
4.3.2 Software and equipment 26.6667 • 3 = 80 1.9 50.67 2 53.33 2 53.33 
4.3.3 Transition services 56.6667 • 3 = 170 1.5 85.00 3 170.00 1.5 85.00 
4.3.4 Initial installation servlce/plen 26.6667 • 3 = 80 2 53.33 2.2 58.67 2.3 61 .33 
4.3.5 Support services/availability 45.0000 • 3 = 135 2.2 99.00 2.1 94.50 1.9 85.50 
4.3.6 Work Plan I tasks Indicated 116.6667 • 3 = 350 1 116.67 2.5 291 .67 1 116.67 
4.3. 7 Project Status Meetings 6.6667 • 3 = 20 2.5 16.67 2.1 14.00 2 13.33 
4.3.8 Testing plan 6.6667 • 3 = 20 2 13.33 2.9 19.33 1.5 10.00 
4.3.9 Deployment plan 3.3333 • 3 = 10 2 6.67 2.5 8 .33 2 6.67 

4.3.10 Documentation and training 45.0000 • 3 = 135 2 90.00 2.8 126.00 2 90.00 
4.3. 11 Post-production support 1.6667 • 3 = 5 1 1.67 2 3.33 1 1.67 
4.3. 12 Subcontractors 1.6667 • 3 = 5 2 3.33 2 3.33 2 3.33 

Subtotals I 466.66671 I 1.400.oo I 728.67 1,109.17 780.17 

TOTAL SCORE: 2,000.00 926.67 1,709.17 972.17 



COMPILATION OF THE SINGLE PROPOSAL PRICE: 

McGiadrey QCI Summit 

Proposal costs 

Software $18,680 $14,900 $16,600 
Review I make recommendations $16,000 $8,000 $41 ,000 
Implementation/set up of accounts $51 ,200 $21 ,000 $41 ,000 
Training $22,400 $4,000 $41 ,000 
Project initiation $22,400 
Deploy and Operate $16,000 
Travel $10,500 

Grand Total $146,680 $47,900 $150,100 



Contract for Microsoft Dynamics GP software 
with implementation services and support 

This Contract for the purchase and implementation of Microsoft Dynamics GP is entered into between the Iowa Lottery 
Authority (Lottery) and Quality Consulting, Inc. (QCI) herein after referred to as ("Contractor"). In consideration of the mutual 
covenants contained in this Contract, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, it is agreed as follows: 

SECTION 1 IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES 

1.1 Parties. The Lottery is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa whose address is 2323 Grand Avenue, Des Moines, lA 
50312. The Lottery is authorized by Iowa Code chapter 99G to conduct a lottery in the state of Iowa. 

QCI, a Corporation is organized under the laws of the State of Iowa and is authorized to do business in the State of Iowa . 
The Contractor's address is 1500 NW 1181

h Street, Clive lA 50325. 

1.2 Project Managers. Each party has designated a Project Manager, who shall be responsible for oversight of the 
project as follows: 

Lottery Project Manager: 

Contractor Project Manager: 

Jonathan Fokken 
Iowa Lottery 
2323 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, lA 50311 
Phone: 515-725-7871 
Fax: 515-725-7902 
Email: jfokken@ialottery.com 

Edward A. Koufer 
Phone: 515-440-4998 
Fax: 515-440-4961 
Email: ekoufer@qci.com 

SECTION 2 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

2.1 Background. The Lottery requires an updated accounting software application which will enable several modules 
including but not limited to reporting, fixed asset, inventory and purchasing. 

2.2 Purpose. The Contractor is considered a certified Microsoft Dynamics partner and therefore able to provide the 
software package desired as well as the expertise and personnel required to assist the Lottery with the implementation 
services, training and support required to initiate and maintain this software package. 

SECTION 3 DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

3.1 Incorporation of Proposal Documents. The Request for Proposal number IL-14-01 (RFP) including any 
clarifications thereto (collectively, the "RFP") and the Contractor's proposal in response to the RFP, together with any 
clarifications of the Contractor (collectively, the "Proposal") are each incorporated into this Agreement by this reference as 
if fully set forth in this Agreement. The terms and conditions of the Proposal and of the RFP are made contractual 
obligations of the Contractor. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement consists of this document as well as the RFP 
and the Proposal and that the parties are obligated to perform as set forth in the RFP and the Proposal to the same extent 
that they are obligated to perform the specific duties set forth in this document. 

3.2 Order of Preference. In the case of any inconsistency or conflict between the specific provisions of this document 
and the RFP or the Proposal, any inconsistency or conflict shall be resolved as follows: 

a) First, by giving preference to the specific provisions of any addendum or amendment to this document. 



b) Second, by giving preference to the specific provisions of this document. 

c) Third, by giving preference to the specific provisions of the Proposal. 

d) Fourth, by giving preference to the specific provisions of any clarifications to the RFP. 

e) Fifth, by giving preference to the specific provisions of the RFP. 

3.3 Intent of References to Bid Documents. The references to the parties' obligations, which are contained in this 
document, are intended to change, supplement or clarify the obligations as stated in the RFP and the Proposal. The 
failure of the parties to make reference to the terms of the RFP or Proposal in this document shall not be construed as 
creating a conflict and will not relieve the Contractor of the contractual obligations imposed by the terms of the RFP and 
the Proposal. Terms offered in the Proposal that exceed the requirements of the RFP shall not be construed as creating 
an inconsistency or conflict with the RFP or this document. The contractual obligations of the Lottery cannot be implied 
from the Proposal. 

SECTION 4 DEFINITIONS 

"Acceptance" means that the Lottery has determined that one or more Deliverables satisfy the Lottery's Acceptance 
Tests. Final Acceptance means that the Lottery has determined that all Deliverables satisfy the Lottery's Acceptance 
Tests. Non-acceptance means that the Lottery has determined that one or more Deliverables have not satisfied the 
Lottery's Acceptance Tests. 

"Acceptance Criteria" means the Specifications, goals, performance measures, testing results and/or other criteria 
designated by the Lottery and against which the Deliverables may be evaluated for purposes of Acceptance or Non
acceptance thereof. 

"Acceptance Tests" or "Acceptance Testing" mean the tests, reviews and other activities that are performed by or on 
behalf of Lottery to determine whether the Deliverables meet the Acceptance Criteria or otherwise satisfy the Lottery, as 
determined by the Lottery in its sole discretion. 

"Bid Proposal" or "Proposal" means the Contractor's proposal submitted in response to the RFP. 

"Contract" means the collective documentation memorializing the terms of the agreement between the Lottery and the 
Contractor and includes these General Terms for Services Contracts and any Special Contract Attachments, addendums 
or amendments. 

"Deficiency" means a defect, flaw, anomaly, failure, omission, interruption of service, or other problem of any nature 
whatsoever with respect to a Deliverable, including, without limitation, any failure of a deliverable to conform to or meet an 
applicable specification. Deficiency also includes the lack of something essential or necessary for completeness or proper 
functioning of a Deliverable. 

"Deliverables" means all of the goods, products, services, work, work product, items, materials and property to be 
created, developed, produced, delivered, performed or provided by or on behalf of, or made available through, Contractor 
(or any agent, contractor or subcontractor of Contractor) in connection with this Contract. 

"Documentation" means any and all technical information, commentary, explanations, design documents, system 
architecture documents, database layouts, test materials, training materials, guides, manuals, worksheets, notes, work 
papers, and all other information, documentation and materials related to or used in conjunction with the Deliverables, in 
any medium, including hard copy, electronic, digital, and magnetically or optically encoded media. 

"Party" means either of the legal entities identified in Section 1 of this Agreement. 

"RFP" means the Request for Proposals or Request for Bids (and any Addenda thereto) that was issued to solicit the 
Deliverables that are subject to the Contract. 

page2 



"Specifications" means all specifications, requirements, technical standards, performance standards, representations 
and other criteria related to the Deliverables stated or expressed in this Contract, the Documentation, the RFP, and the 
Proposal. Specifications shall include the Acceptance Criteria and any specifications, standards or criteria stated or set 
forth in any applicable state, federal, foreign and local laws, rules and regulations. The Specifications are incorporated 
into this Contract by reference as if fully set forth in this Contract. 

"Task Milestone Date" shall mean any of the dates contained in the Contract stating the deadline for accomplishing 
tasks required by this Contract. 

SECTION 5 TERM 

Term of Contract. The term of this Contract shall be December 16, 2013 through September 30, 2015 unless terminated 
earlier in accordance with the Termination section of this Contract. This period includes the implementation period through 
September 30, 2014 plus one year of maintenance. The Lottery shall have the sole option to renew and extend this 
Contract for additional one year periods or any combination thereof, adding up to no more than 6 years total plus the 
implementation period, provided that any such option to renew is exercised in writing by the Lottery, subject to Lottery 
Board approval as applicable, prior to the expiration of this Contract or any additional renewal thereof. 

SECTION 6 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

6.1 Statement of Work. Contractor shall provide Microsoft Dynamics GP Starter Pack 2013 Service Pack 2 and 
Microsoft Dynamics GP Integration Suite to include: 

o 4 Concurrent full user licenses 

o 6 Concurrent limited user licenses 

The Lottery desires to purchase the Microsoft Dynamics GP Starter Pack before the expiration of the Special 
Promotion offered by Microsoft that will provide an additional (fifth) Concurrent Full User License. 

The Contractor shall complete the following phases as part of the Work Plan: 

Obliaation Task Milestone Date 
Analvsis December 2013- January 2014 
Des ian January 2014 
Develooment February 2014 
Deolovment lincludina oarallel testinal March 2014- June 2014 
Finallmolementation July 1, 2014 - Seotember 30, 2014 

Analysis 

The Analysis phase represents the official start of the implementation. Key activities and deliverables 
include: 

• Fit Gap Analysis Spreadsheet-compares your requirements with Microsoft Dynamics 
functionality and identifies any gaps where customizations are needed 

• Functional Requirements Document-involves in-depth checklists that help us developed 
detailed requirements by role and function 

• Project Plan-captures milestones, accountabilities, roles, etc., to set clear expectations and 
keep us on track 

• Change Control Plan-determines how we'll identify, review and approve any scope or requirements 
changes 

• Communications and Training Plans-helps us establish communication channels and the types of 
training we'll need for different key stakeholders 
and broad users 

• Development, Quality & Testing Standards-establishes standards for how we'll ensure the quality of 
customization development and solution design 

page 3 



Design 

to meet your requirements 

In the Design phase we will configure your solution and design customizations needed to meet your 
requirements. Key activities and deliverables include: 

• Risks and Issues Management-using proven Project Management 
Institute processes to help us identify, work through and avoid risks and 
issues 

• Core Team Training-on new solution processes, including how their processes will change 
• Create Test Scripts by role and function-to ensure the solution meets your critical business 

process requirements 
• Conduct Feature Testing-to ensure your critical business processes are complete and streamlined 

in the new solution 

• Create Technical Design Document-to capture detailed requirements for any customizations that 
need to be developed 

• Begin Data Migration Design-to map out the process that will be used to migrate data from your 
current solution to your new solution 

Development 

In the Development phase, your complete solution will be built and configured. Key activities and 
deliverables include: 

• Determine Security Roles-to define which roles in your company have different types of access 
to specific functionality 

• Complete System Configuration and Setup of additional software-to determine detailed 
settings for all system configuration screens 

• Finalize Customization Code--to complete any customizations you need to meet unique requirements 
• Conduct Acceptance Testing-to ensure your new solution meets your functionality requirements 
• Begin Developing Data Migration Scripts-to plan detailed process and timing of data migration to 

your new solution 

Deployment (including parallel testing) 
In the Deployment phase, all our teamwork comes together in the transition to your new Microsoft 
Dynamics GP system. Key activities and deliverables include: 

• End User Training-to prepare all employees who'll be using the new solution 
• Final System Readiness-to plan for go live 
• Final Acceptance Testing-to ensure all requirements are met 
• Plan for Go-Live Cutover-to determine specific timing of go-live cutover 
• Final Data Migration-to ensure all system data is migrated to the new solution 
• Go-Live-when you'll be running totally on your new solution 

Final Implementation Period 

In the Operation phase, we'll close the project and identify any ongoing support and transition assistance 
you need. Key activities and deliverables include: 

• Provide Post Go-Live Support 
• Review Deliverables against SOW and Close Out Project 
• Establish Ongoing Quality and Testing Strategy 
• Conduct Disaster Recovery Test 
• Close out year procedures 

The scheduled dates at a more detailed level will be developed during the Analysis Phase of the project. 

page4 



Task Name Start End Date Date 
1-

Analysis Phase 12/212013 1/31/2014 
Program Management 

Project Planning 
Project Plan 

Training 
Conduct Solution Overview 

Solution Overview 
Requirements and Configuration 

Gather Business Requirements 
Functional Requirements 

Conduct Fit Gap Analysis 
Fit Gap Analysis 

Infrastructure 
Setup DEV and PROD Environments 

DEV and PROD Environments 
Data Migration 

Gather Data Migration Requirements 
Data Migration Requirements 

Analysis Phase Complete 
Design Phase 1/1/2014 1/31/2014 

Requirements and Configuration 
Configure and Setup Standard and ISV 

Solutions 
Std and ISV Solution Setup 

Conduct Conference Room Pilot 
Conference Room Pilot 

Data Migration 
Begin Data Migration 

Design Phase Complete 

-
1
_j)evelopment Phase 2/1/2014 2/28/2014 

Requirements and Configuration 
Finalize Configuration and Setup 

Final System Configuration and Setup 
Development Phase Complete 

page5 



Task Name Start End Date Date 

1
__!)eployment Phase (Including parallel testing) 3/1/2014 6/30/2014 

Training 
Conduct User Training 

User Training 
Requirements and Configuration 

Go Live 
Go Live 

Quality and Testing 
Conduct User Acceptance Testing 

User Acceptance Test Results 
Data Migration 

Final Data Migration to PROD 
Final Data Migration to PROD 

Deployment Phase Complete 

1_..!.!!~l~lementmmn Phase 7/1/2014 9/30/2014 
Program Management 

Project Closure 
Project Close Out Report 
Project Acceptance 

Requirements and Configuration 
Transition to Support 

Solution Transitioned to Support 
Implementation Phase Complete 

Contractor shall complete its obligations regarding project management, status meetings, reporting, testing, training and 
support as detailed in the proposal response. 

6.2 Industry Standards. Services rendered pursuant to this Contract shall be performed in a professional and 
workmanlike manner in accordance with the terms of this Contract and the standards of performance considered 
generally acceptable in the relevant industry for similar tasks and projects. In the absence of a detailed specification for 
the performance of any portion of this Contract, the parties agree that the applicable specification shall be the generally 
accepted industry standard. 

6.3 Timely Performance. Time is of the essence with respect to the successful performance of the terms of this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel providing services to the Lottery are responsive to Lottery 
requirements in all respects including Lottery directives with respect to the goods and services delivered in accordance 
with this Agreement. 

6.4 Stop Services. In addition to its other remedies described herein, Lottery shall have the right at any time during the 
Contract term to direct the services of Contractor fully or partially suspended or stopped, if the deliverables or services fail 
to conform to applicable specifications and requirements in this Contract. Lottery shall give Contractor written notice of a 
stop work directive. Lottery shall provide to Contractor the reasons for the stop work directive. 

6.5 Amendments. The Contract may be amended in writing from time to time by mutual consent of the parties. All 
amendments to this Agreement must be fully executed by both parties. The only parties authorized to execute 

page6 



amendments on behalf of the Lottery are the Lottery CEO, Executive Vice President, Vice President of Operations or Vice 
President of Finance. 

6.6 Key Personnel. Throughout the term of the Contract, the key personnel identified in the Proposal shall provide the 
service identified in the Work Plan of the Proposal. If additional personnel are added or substituted for these key 
personnel, these key personnel shall be of equal qualifications and required to submit a completed background form and 
fingerprint cards prior to working on the project. The cost to complete additional background investigations is at the 
expense of the Contractor. 

SECTION 7 COMPENSATION 

7.1 Not-to-exceed total amount of Contract. Payment for the work performed by Contractor according to the terms of 
this Contract shall not exceed $47,900.00 as detailed below plus the cost of annual maintenance agreements. 

Software per Proposal 

Optional Software: 

Smartlist Builder Pack 

Rockton Software Auditor (4 users X $250) 

Review current practices and business needs; make recommendations 

Implementation and setup for Lottery funds, chart of accounts and reports 

Training 

$11,900 

$2,000 

$1,000 

$8,000 

$21,000 

$4,000 

Payment shall be for satisfactory completion of the Statement of Work outlined in this Contract and modifications as 
requested by the Lottery, , provided that Contractor has complied with the terms of this Contract. Additional payments for 
modifications to scope of services or additional software requirements as documented in change orders shall be allowed. 
Upon completion of implementation and acceptance of work plan after September 30, 2014, additional post-production 
support and service requests shall be paid at the hourly rate of $155.00. 

7.2 Final Notice Acceptance of Implementation of Statements of Work. If Lottery concludes, in its sole discretion, 
that all the Tasks required by the Statement of Work have been timely completed and all deliverables and services 
required by this Contract have been satisfactorily completed and delivered, and that the implementation of the Statement 
of Work is completed and successfully deployed, then Lottery shall issue a written Final Notice of Acceptance. 

7.3 Submission of Invoices. Invoices shall be submitted to Lottery according to the following schedule: 

Amount of Invoice Due 
com~ensation allotted No Later Than: 
to task 

Purchase of software $14,900 December 24, 2013 
and licenses 
First Year Annual $5,541 December 24, 2013 
Maintenance 
Payment Schedule to $33,000 TBD 
be determined with 
Contractor 

Total $53,441 

Each invoice shall itemize the work performed pursuant to the Contract. Each invoice shall comply with all applicable 
rules concerning payment of such claims and shall contain appropriate documentation necessary to support the fees or 
charges included in the invoice. Lottery shall have the right to dispute any invoice item submitted for payment and to 

page? 



withhold payment of any disputed amount if Lottery reasonably believes the invoice is inaccurate or incorrect in any way. 
Original invoices shall be submitted to: 

Iowa Lottery 
Attention: Accounts Payable 
2323 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, lA 50312 
AcctPay@ialottery.com 

7.4 Payment of Invoices. The Lottery shall retain twenty percent (20%) of each payment due Contractor under this 
Contract, except for software/license payment. The Lottery shall pay the retained amount only after all performance of the 
services has been completed by Contractor and accepted by the Lottery. No interest shall accrue or be paid to Contractor 
on amounts retained by the Lottery under this contract. The Lottery shall pay all approved invoices in arrears and in 
conformance with Iowa Code 8A.514 an II lAC §41.1(2). The Lottery may pay in less than sixty {60) days, but an election 
to pay in less than sixty (60) days shall not act as an implied waiver of Iowa Code § 8A.514. Unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the parties, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any other payment or compensation from the Lottery 
for any Deliverables provided by or on behalf of the Contractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for paying all costs, expenses and charges it incurs in connection with its performance under this Contract. 

7.5 No advance payment. No advance payments shall be made for any Deliverables provided by Contractor pursuant to 
this Contract. 

7.6 Reimbursable Expenses. There shall be no reimbursable expenses associated with this Contract separate from the 
compensation referred to in this section, unless agreed to by both parties in an amendment to this Contract or in a 
Change Order executed by both parties. Unless otherwise specifically provided for in this Contract, Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for all its costs and expenses, including but not limited to travel, mileage, meals, lodging, equipment, 
supplies, personnel, training, salaries, benefits, insurance, conferences, long distance telephone, and all other costs and 
expenses of the Contractor. 

7.7 Withholding Payments. In addition to pursuing any other remedy provided herein or by law, the Lottery may 
withhold compensation or payments to Contractor, in whole or in part, without penalty to the Lottery or work stoppage by 
Contractor, in the event the Lottery determines that: (i) Contractor has failed to perform any of its duties or obligations as 
set forth in this Contract; or (ii) any Deliverable has failed to meet or conform to any applicable Specifications or contains 
or is experiencing a Deficiency. No interest shall accrue or be paid to Contractor on any compensation or other amounts 
withheld or retained by the Lottery under this Contract. 

7.8 Setoff Against Sums Owed by the Contractor. In the event that Contractor owes the State or other government 
instrumentality any sum under the terms of this Contract, any other contract or agreement, pursuant to a judgment, or 
pursuant to any law, the State may, in its sole discretion, set off any such sum against: (1) any sum invoiced by, or owed 
to, Contractor under this Contract, or (2) any sum or amount owed by the State to Contractor, unless otherwise required 
by law. The Contractor agrees that this provision constitutes proper and timely notice under any applicable laws governing 
setoff. 

7.9 State not to be Obligated. Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 99G.38, the funds of the State of Iowa, as opposed to 
the funds of the Iowa Lottery Authority, are not available to meet the obligations of the Lottery that may arise from this 
Agreement. 

7.10 Suspension of Payment. The Lottery may suspend all or part of the payment to the Contractor if the Contractor 
fails to perform as required by this Agreement until such time as the Contractor renders satisfactory performance. The 
amount of the payment suspended shall be reasonably calculated by the Lottery to represent only that part of the 
Contractor's payment that is attributable to the work not satisfactorily performed. The determination as to whether the 
contractor is in compliance with this Agreement shall be within the discretion of the Lottery. 

7.11 Taxes. The Contractor and its subcontractors, may be subject to certain taxes, including but not limited to sales tax, 
motor vehicle fuel tax, personal or corporate income tax or other taxes or assessments, and to licensing fees or other 
miscellaneous fees or charges which may be imposed by federal, state, or local law or ordinance. The Contractor and its 

page8 



subcontractors shall be solely responsible for paying any taxes incurred in the performance of this Agreement. The 
Contractor shall promptly pay all such taxes, fees or charges when due. The Lottery is a tax-exempt entity and no 
payment will be made for any taxes levied on the Contractor for any purpose. 

7.12 CPI Cost Adjustments. The hourly rate in this Agreement shall allow for an adjustment (increase or decrease) of 
the Contractor's price for any contract extensions that may be exercised by the Lottery after the original contract period. 
The Agreement will allow for an adjustment of the Contractor's hourly rate based on a percentage of the change in the 
National All Urban Consumer Price Index for the "all items" classification from October to October. The new hourly rate 
will be effective for each extension period as may be exercised. The CPI adjustment shall be 100%. 

SECTION 8 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

8.1 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice for the breach by the other 
party of a material term, if such breach is not cured, provided that a cure is feasible within 10 days following receipt of 
written notice of breach from the non-breaching party. Breach events include but are not limited to the following: 

a) Contractor fails to perform as required by this Agreement; or 
b) Contractor fails to make substantial and timely progress toward performance or fails to meet any of the 

material specifications and requirements of this Agreement, including without limitation the representations 
and warranties provided in this Agreement; or 

c) Lottery fails to perform as required by this Agreement including failure to make timely payment for goods and 
services rendered. 

8.2 Notice of Cure. If a cure is feasible and an opportunity to cure is provided, the notice shall specify the exact date by 
which the condition must be cured. Following expiration of the opportunity to cure and notice from the non-breaching 
party, the non-breaching party may seek any legal or equitable remedy authorized by this Agreement or by law. 

8.3 Immediate Termination. The Lottery may terminate this Agreement, effective immediately without advance notice 
and without penalty or legal liability for any of the following reasons: 

If the Contractor furnished any statement, representation, warranty or certification in connection with this Agreement, 
which is materially false, deceptive, incorrect or incomplete; or 

a) In the event the Contractor is required to be certified or licensed as a condition precedent to providing 
services, the revocation or loss of such license or certification will result in immediate termination of the 
Contract effective as of the date on which the license or certification is no longer in effect; 

b) Lottery determines that the actions, or failure to act, of the Contractor, and its agents and employees have 
caused, or reasonably could cause, any person's life, health or safety to be jeopardized; 

c) The Contractor fails to comply with confidentiality laws or provisions; 
d) The Contractor furnished any statement, representation or certification in connection with this Contract or the 

RFP which is materially false, deceptive, incorrect or incomplete. 
e) If the Contractor fails to perform, to the Lottery's satisfaction, any material requirement of this Agreement or is 

in violation of any material provision of this Agreement, including, without limitation, the express warranties 
made by the Contractor; or 

f) If the Contractor becomes subject to any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding under federal or state law to 
the extent allowed by applicable state or federal law including bankruptcy laws; or 

g) If the Contractor terminates or suspends its business; or 
If cancellation occurs for any of the causes set forth above, the Lottery shall have no further obligation to the Contractor 
other than payment for services rendered and materials provided prior to cancellation. Payment will be made only upon 
submission of invoices and proper proof of the Contractor's claim. This provision in no way limits the remedies available 
to the Lottery in the event of a termination under this provision. 

8.4 Termination for Lack of Authority or Funding. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 
subject to the limitations, conditions, and procedures set forth below, the Lottery shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement without penalty by giving sixty (60) days written notice if any of the following contingencies occur: 

a) If the Lottery's authorization to operate is withdrawn or there is a material alteration in the programs the 
Lottery administers; or 

page9 



b) If Lottery's duties are substantially modified. 

8.5 Termination upon Notice. Following 30 days' written notice, Lottery may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 
without the payment of any penalty or incurring any further obligation to the Contractor. Following termination upon notice, 
the Contractor shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of invoices and prope~ proof of claim, for services 
provided under this Contract to Lottery up to and including the date of termination. 

8.6 Waiver. Any breach or default by either party shall not be waive·d or released other than by a writing signed by the 
other party. Failure by either party at any time to require performance by the other party or to claim a breach of any 
provision of the Agreement shall not be construed as affecting any subsequent breach or the right to require performance 
with respect thereto or to claim a breach with respect thereto. Only the following persons may execute a waiver of a term 
of this Agreement on behalf of the Lottery: the Lottery CEO, the Executive Vice President, Vice President of Operations 
or Vice President of Finance. 

8.7 Remedies of Contractor. In the event of termination of this Agreement the Contractor shall be paid for services 
completed prior to termination upon submission of invoices and proper proof of claim, for services and materials provided 
to the Lottery prior to cancellation and for reasonable industrial costs of work-in-progress. 

8.8 No Release of Obligation. The expiration or termination of this Agreement for any cause shall not release either 
party from: 

a) Any obligations and duties remaining under any order accepted by the Contractor prior to such expiration or 
termination; 

b) Any liability which at the time of expiration or termination has already accrued to the other party, or, which 
thereafter may accrue in respect to any event prior to expiration or termination; or 

c) Any liability from any obligation that survives expiration or termination. 

8.9 The Contractor's Termination Duties. The Contractor upon receipt of notice of termination or upon request of 
Lottery shall: 

a) Cease work under this Contract and take all necessary or appropriate steps to limit disbursements and 
minimize costs, and furnish a report within thirty (30) days of the date of notice of termination, describing the 
status of all work under the Contract, including, without limitation, results accomplished, and conclusions 
resulting there from, any other matters Lottery may require. 

b) Immediately cease using and return to Lottery any personal property or materials, whether tangible or 
intangible, provided by Lottery to the Contractor. 

c) Comply with Lottery's instructions for the timely transfer of any active files and work product produced by the 
Contractor under this Contract. 

d) Cooperate in good faith with Lottery, its employees, agents and contractors during the transition period 
between the notification of termination and the substitution of any replacement contractor. 

e) Immediately return to Lottery any payments made by Lottery for services that were not rendered by the 
Contractor. 

8.10 Rights in incomplete products. In the event the Contract is terminated, all finished or unfinished documents, data, 
reports, or other materials prepared by the Contractor under this Contract shall, at the option of Lottery, become Lottery's 
property and the Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work 
completed on such documents and other material. 

SECTION 9 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

The status of the Contractor shall be that of an independent contractor. The Contractor, its employees, agents and 
subcontractor performing under this Agreement are not employees or agents of the Lottery. 

The Lottery shall not provide the Contractor with office space, support staff, equipment, tools, or supervision beyond the 
terms of this Agreement. Neither the Contractor nor its employees, agents and subcontractors are eligible for any State 
employee benefits, including but not limited to, retirement benefits, insurance coverage or the like. 

page 10 



Neither the Contractor nor its employees shall be considered employees of the Lottery or the State of Iowa for federal or 
state tax purposes. The Lottery shall not withhold taxes on behalf of the Contractor (unless required by law). The 
Contractor shall be responsible for payment of all taxes in connection with any income earned from this Agreement. 

Nothing in this Contract shall be construed as creating or constituting the relationship of a partnership, joint venture, (or 
other association of any kind or agent/principal relationship) between the parties hereto. No party, unless otherwise 
specifically provided for herein, has the authority to enter into any Contract or create an obligation or liability on behalf of, 
in the name of, or binding upon another party to this Agreement. 

page II 



SECTION 10 CONTRACTOR REpBESENTAJIONS ANQ WARRANTIES 

10.1 Concepts, Materials, and Works Produced. Contractor represents and warrants that all the concepts, materials 
and deliverables produced, or provided to Lottery pursuant to the terms of this Contract shall be wholly original with the 
Contractor or that the Contractor has secured all applicable interests, rights, licenses, permits or other intellectual property 
rights in such concepts, materials and work product produced under this Contract. The Contractor represents and 
warrants that the concepts, materials and work product produced under this Contract, and Lottery's use of same, and the 
exercise by Lottery of the rights granted by this Contract, shall not infringe upon any other work, other than material 
provided by the Contract to the Contractor to be used as a basis for such materials, or violate the rights of publicity or 
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person, firm or corporation and that the concepts, materials and 
work product produced under this Contract will not infringe upon the copyright, trademark, trade name, literary, dramatic, 
statutory, common law or any other rights of any person, firm or corporation or other entity. The Contractor represents and 
warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute any software, the materials owned by the 
Contractor and any other materials, work product produced under this Contract and methodologies used in connection 
with providing the services contemplated by this Contract. 

10.2 Professional Practices. The Contractor represents and warrants that all of the services to be performed 
hereunder will be rendered using sound, professional practices and in a competent and professional manner by 
knowledgeable, trained and qualified personnel. 

10.3 Conformity with Contractual Requirements. The Contractor represents and warrants that the work product 
produced under this Contract will appear and operate in conformance with the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

10.4 Authority to Enter into Contract. The Contractor represents and warrants that it has full authority to enter into 
this Contract and that it has not granted and will not grant any right or interest to any person or entity that might derogate, 
encumber or interfere with the rights granted to Lottery. 

10.5 Obligations Owed to Third Parties. The Contractor represents and warrants that all obligations owed to third 
parties with respect to the activities contemplated to be undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to this Contract are or will 
be fully satisfied by the Contractor so that Lottery will not have any obligations with respect thereto. 

10.6 Title to Property. The Contractor represents and warrants that title to any property assigned, conveyed or 
licensed to Lottery is good and that transfer of title or license to Lottery is rightful and that all property shall be delivered 
free of any security interest or other lien or encumbrance. 

10.7 Industry Standards. The Contractor represents and expressly warrants that all aspects of the goods and 
services provided or used by it shall conform to the applicable industry standards in the performance of this Contract. 

10.8 Technology Updates. The Contractor represents and warrants that it shall continually use and integrate the 
most current and up-to-date technology commercially available. 

10.9 Material Omissions. The Contractor represents and warrants that it has not made any misrepresentations to the 
Lottery related to this Agreement or the products and services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement. 
"Misrepresentations" include material omissions. 

SECTION 11 FORCE MAJEURE 

A force majeure occurrence is an event or effect that cannot be reasonably anticipated, prevented or controlled. The 
Contractor shall not be in default under this Contract if performance is delayed or if Contractor may not reasonably 
perform the Contract due to an act of God, flood, fire or similar events. In each such case, the delay or impracticability 
must be beyond the reasonable control and anticipation of the Contractor, and without the fault or negligence of the 
Contractor. If delay results from a subcontractor's conduct, from the Contractor's negligence or fault, or from 
circumstances which by the exercise of reasonable diligence the Contractor should have been able to anticipate or 
prevent, then the Contractor shall be in default and this paragraph shall not be applicable. It shall be the responsibility of 
the Contractor to prove that performance was delayed or impracticable within the meaning of this paragraph. 

page 12 



SECTION 12 INSURANCE 

12.1 Coverage Requirements. The Contractor shall maintain in full force and effect, with insurance companies of 
recognized responsibility, at its own expense, insurance covering its work during the entire term of this Agreement and 
any extensions or renewals. The Contractor's insurance shall, among other things, be occurrence based and shall insure 
against any loss or damage resulting from or related to the Contractor's performance of this Contract regardless of the 
date the claim is filed or expiration of the policy. Certificates of insurance must be furnished to the Lottery no later than 
ten (10) days following Contract execution, with renewal certificates provided each year thereafter. The Lottery and State 
of Iowa will be named as an additional insured or loss payee or the Contractor shall obtain an endorsement to the same 
effect, as applicable. 

12.2 Types of Coverage. Unless otherwise requested by the Lottery, Contractor shall, at its sole cost, cause to be 
issued and maintained during the entire term of the contract not less than the insurance coverage's set forth below each 
naming Lottery and the State of Iowa as an additional insured or loss payee, as applicable : 

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMIT 

General Liability (including contractual liability) General Aggregate 
written on an occurrence basis 

Property Damage 

Errors and Omissions Insurance 

Product completed 
Operations Aggregate 

Personal Injury 

Each Occurrence 

Each Occurrence 
Aggregate 

Each Occurrence 

Automobile Liability, including any auto, hired Combined Single Limit 
autos and non-owned autos 

Excess Liability, Umbrella Form 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability 

Each Occurrence 
Aggregate 
As Required by law 

MOUNT 

$2m ill ion 

$1 million 

$1 million 

$1 million 

$1 million 
$1 million 

$1 million 

$1 million 

$1 million 
$1 million 

12.3 Coverage Without Regard to Claim. All insurance policies required by this Agreement, with the exception of the 
Errors and Omissions Policy, shall provide coverage for all claims arising from activities occurring during the term of the 
policy regardless of the date the claim is filed or expiration of the policy. 

12.4 Notice Regarding Cancellation. Certificates of insurance, which provide that the Lottery will be notified at least 
thirty (30) days prior to cancellation or expiration of the insurance coverage required by this Agreement, shall be provided 
to the Lottery within ten (10) days of contract execution or at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. The receipt of such 
certificates does not constitute approval of the coverage contained on the certificates, and the Contractor remains 
responsible for determining that its insurance coverage meets each and every requirement of this Agreement. The 
insurer shall state in the certificate that no cancellation of the insurance will be made without at least thirty (30) days prior 
notice to the Lottery and that the notice shall be directed to the Lottery in writing. 

12.5 No Limitation of Liability. Acceptance of the insurance certificates by the Lottery shall not act to relieve the Contractor 
of any obligation under this Agreement. All insurance policies and certificates shall be issued only by companies authorized to 
transact business in the State of Iowa. 

page 13 



12.6 Warranty. The Contractor warrants that it has examined its insurance coverage and determined that Lottery may 
be named as an additional insured or loss payee without creating an adverse effect on the Contractor's coverage. 

12.7 Professional Liability Insurance. Contractor shall procure and maintain a professional liability insurance policy 
that indemnifies the Lottery and the State of Iowa for any losses incurred or any other error or omission caused by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors or assigns regardless of negligence. The insurance shall 
remain in effect for one year past the expiration of this Agreement and any extensions thereof. 

12.8 Waiver of Subrogation Rights. The Contractor shall obtain a waiver of any subrogation rights that any of its 
insurance carriers might have against the Iowa Lottery or the State of Iowa. The waiver of subrogation rights shall be 
indicated on the certificates of insurance coverage supplied to the Lottery. 

12.9 Filing of Claims. In the event either the Lottery or the State suffers a loss and is unable to file a claim under any 
policy of insurance required under this Contract, the Contractor shall, at the Lottery's request, immediately file a proper 
claim under such policy. Contractor will provide the Lottery with proof of filing of any such claim and keep the Lottery fully 
informed about the status of the claim. In addition, Contractor agrees to use its best efforts to pursue any such claim, to 
provide information and documentation requested by any insurer providing insurance required hereunder and to 
cooperate with the Lottery and the State. Contractor shall pay to the Lottery and the State any insurance proceeds or 
payments it receives in connection with any such claim immediately upon Contractor's receipt of such proceeds or 
payments. 

12.10 Proceeds. In the event the Lottery or the State suffers a loss that may be covered under any of the insurance 
limits stated above, neither the Contractor nor any subsidiary or affiliate thereof shall have any right to receive or recover 
any payments or proceeds that may be made or payable under such policies until the Lottery and/or the State have fully 
recovered any losses, damages or expenses sustained or incurred by it (subject to applicable policy limits), and 
Contractor hereby assigns to the Lottery and the State all of its rights in and to any and all payments and proceeds that 
may be made or payable under each policy of insurance required under this Contract. 

SECTION 13 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECURITY 

Contractor and all Contractor personnel shall comply with Iowa Lottery Applications Security Policy and Iowa Lottery 
Logging Policy. By signing this contract, the Contractor acknowledges that the Contractor has read and understands the 
provisions of the Iowa Lottery Applications Security Policy and Iowa Lottery Logging Policy in effect on the date of signing 
(Attachment A and B) and that the software will enforce audit logging for all transactions in a manner which may not be 
altered or turned off. 

The Contractor further agrees to read and abide by any revised Lottery policies that may be provided to the Contractor 
that come into effect during the term of this Contract. 

SECTION 14 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING 

14.1 Project Manager. At the time of execution of this Contract, each party shall designate, in writing, a Project 
Manager to serve until the expiration of this Contract or the designation of a substitute Project Manager. During the term 
of this Contract, each Project Manager shall be available to meet weekly, unless otherwise mutually agreed, to review and 
plan the services being provided under this Contract. 

14.2 Review Meetings. During the review meetings the Project Managers shall discuss progress made by the 
Contractor in the performance of this Contract. Each party shall provide a status report, as desired by a Project Manager, 
listing any problem or concern encountered since the last meeting. Records of such reports and other communications 
issued in writing during the course of Contract performance shall be maintained by each party. 

14.3 Reports. At the next scheduled meeting after which any party has identified in writing a problem, the party 
responsible for resolving the problem shall provide a report setting forth activities undertaken, or to be undertaken, to 
resolve the problem, together with the anticipated completion dates of such activities. Any party may recommend 

page 14 



alternative courses of action or changes that will facilitate problem resolution. For as long as a problem remains 
unresolved, written reports shall identify: 

14.3.1 Any event not within the control of the Contractor or the Lottery that accounts for the 

problem; 
14.3.2 Modifications to the Contract agreed to by the parties in order to. remedy or solve the identified 
problem; 
14.3.3 Damages incurred as a result of any party's failure to perform its obligations under this 
Contract; and 
14.3.4 Any request or demand for services by one party that another party believes are not included within 
the terms of this Contract. 

14.4 Problem Reporting Omissions. The L o I I e r y 's acceptance of a problem report shall not relieve the 
Contractor of any obligation under this Contract or waive any other remedy under this Contract or at law or equity that the 
Lottery may have. The Lottery's failure to identify the extent of a problem or the extent of damages incurred as a result of 
a problem shall not act as a waiver of performance under this Contract. Where other provisions of this Contract require 
notification of an event in writing, the written report shall be considered a valid notice under this Contract provided the 
parties required to receive notice are notified. 

14.5 Change Order Procedure. The Lottery may at any time request a modification to the Scope of 
Services using a Change Order. The following procedures for a change order shall be followed: 

14.5.1 Written Request. The Lottery shall specify in writing the desired modifications to the same degree of 
specificity as in the original Scope of Services. 

14.5.2 The Contractor's Response. The Contractor shall submit to the Lottery a time and cost estimate 
for the requested Change Order within five (5) business days of receiving the Change Order Request. 

14.5.3 Acceptance of the Contractor Estimate. If the Lottery accepts the estimate presented by the 
Contractor within five (5) business days of receiving the Contractor's response, the Contractor shall perform the 
modified services subject to the time and cost estimates included in the Contractor response. The 
Contractor's performance and the modified services shall be governed by the terms and conditions of this 
Contract. 

14.5.4 Adjustment to Compensation. The parties acknowledge that a Change Order for this Contract may or 
may not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment in the Contractor's compensation or the performance 
deadlines under this Contract. 

SECTION 15 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

15.1 Title to Property. Title to all property furnished by Lottery or the State to Contractor to facilitate the performance of 
this Contract shall remain the sole property of Lottery and the State. All such property shall be used by Contractor only for 
purposes of fulfilling its obligations under this Contract and shall be returned to Lottery upon the earliest of completion, 
termination, or cancellation of this Contract or at Lottery's request. Contractor acknowledges that it shall acquire no 
interest or rights in and to such property. Except as expressly provided in this Contract, Contractor shall not disclose or 
use such property for any purpose, including pledging or encumbering it, selling or using it for monetary gain, using it to 
compile mailing lists, solicit business or pursue other business activities, or otherwise. Title to all property purchased by 
Contractor, for which Contractor has been reimbursed or paid by Lottery under this Contract, shall pass to and vest in the 
State, except as otherwise provided in this Contract. 

15.2 Care of Property. Contractor shall be responsible for the proper custody and care of any Lottery-owned property, 
including data, databases, software, interfaces, hardware, telecommunications lines and equipment, intellectual property and 
Lottery Property furnished for Contractor's use in connection with the performance of the contract. Contractor shall 
exercise its best efforts to prevent damage to all such property and shall, at Lottery's request, restore damaged property to its 

page 15 



condition prior to the damage at the sole expense of Contractor. Such restoration shall be complete when judged satisfactory 
by Lottery. In the event such property cannot be restored to Lottery's satisfaction, Contractor shall reimburse Lottery for 
any loss or damage to such property caused by Contractor, or any agent, contractor or subcontractor employed or utilized 
by Contractor. Contractor shall not take any action that would impair the value of, or goodwill associated with, the name, 
property and intellectual property rights of Lottery and the State. Contractor shall obtain the prior advance written 
approval from Lottery prior to Contractor's use of the name, marks or intellectual property rights of Lottery or the State. 

15.3 Ownership of Deliverables and Intellectual Property. Contractor agrees that the Deliverables and all intellectual 
property rights and proprietary rights arising out of, embodied in, or related to, such Deliverables, shall become and 
remain the sole and exclusive property of the Lottery and the State. Contractor hereby irrevocably transfers, assigns and 
conveys to the Lottery and the State all right, title and interest in and to such Deliverables and intellectual property rights 
and proprietary rights. Contractor shall take all actions as may be necessary or requested by the Lottery to carry out and 
affect such transfer, assignment and conveyance. Contractor represents and warrants that the Lottery and the State shall 
acquire good and clear title to such Deliverables, free from any claims, liens, security interests, encumbrances or other 
rights or interests of Contractor or of any Third Party. The Lottery and the State shall have the right to obtain and hold 
copyrights, patents or such other registrations or intellectual property protections as may be desirable or appropriate to 
the subject matter, and any extensions or renewals thereof. Contractor shall assist the Lottery and the State to obtain and 
secure copyrights, patents or other intellectual property rights, registrations or protections with respect to all such 
Deliverables in the United States and any other countries. Contractor agrees to execute all papers and to give all facts 
known to it necessary to secure United States or foreign country copyrights and patents, and to transfer or cause to 
transfer to the Lottery and the State all the right, title and interest in and to such Deliverables. Contractor also agrees to 
waive and not assert any moral rights it may have with regard to such Deliverables. The Contractor shall not retain any 
property interests or other rights in and to such Deliverables and shall not use such Deliverables, in whole or in part, for 
any purpose, without the prior written consent of the Lottery and the payment of such royalties or other compensation as 
the Lottery deems appropriate. As the owner of such Deliverables, the Lottery and the State may, without limitation: (i) 
adapt, change, modify, edit or use the Deliverables as the Lottery or the State sees fit, including in combination with the 
works of others, prepare derivative works based on the Deliverables, and publish, display and distribute throughout the 
world any Deliverable(s) in any medium, whether now known or later devised, including, without limitation, any digital or 
optical medium, and (ii) make, use, sell, license, sublicense, or lease the Deliverables and any intellectual property rights 
therein or related thereto without payment of additional compensation to Contractor. 

15.4 Hardware and Equipment. In the event that any hardware and other equipment owned by Contractor and used in 
connection with this Contract is subject to the security interest or a legal or equitable interest by a third party who is not a 
party to this Contract, Contractor shall insure in any such transactions that Lottery shall be notified of a default occurring 
under the instrument and if Contractor does not cure the default within the time allowed, Lottery may, in its sole discretion, 
cure the default by Contractor and assess or set off all costs associated with affecting cure, including the amount in 
default and reasonable attorney's fees against Contractor. 

15.5 Further Assurances. At the Lottery's request, Contractor shall execute and deliver such instruments and take such 
other action as may be requested by the Lottery to establish, perfect or protect the State's and the Lottery's rights in and 
to the Deliverables and to carry out the assignments, transfers and conveyances required by this Contract. Contractor 
shall execute any instruments, provide all facts known to it, and do all other things requested by the Lottery (both during 
and after the term of this Contract) in order to vest more fully in the State and the Lottery any and all ownership rights and 
intellectual property rights in and to the Deliverables. In the event the Lottery is unable, after reasonable effort, to secure 
Contractor's signature on any letters, patent, copyright, or other analogous protection relating to the Deliverables, for any 
reason whatsoever, Contractor hereby irrevocably designates and appoints the Lottery, and its duly authorized officers, 
employees and agents, as Contractor's agent and attorney-in-fact, to act for and in its behalf to execute and file any such 
application or applications and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to further the prosecution and issuance of letters 
patent, copyright registrations, and other analogous protection, including extensions and renewals thereon, with the same 
legal force and effect as if executed by Contractor. 

SECTION 16 INDEMNIFICATION 

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the State of Iowa and Lottery, its officers, employees and agents 
appointed and elected and volunteers from any and all costs, expenses, losses, claims, damages, liabilities, settlements 
and judgments, related to or arising from: any breach of this Contract; any negligent, intentional or wrongful act or 

page 16 



om1ss1on of the Contractor or any agent or subcontractor utilized or employed by the Contractor; the Contractor's 
performance or attempted performance of this Contract, including any agent or subcontractor utilized or employed by the 
Contractor; any failure by the Contractor to comply with the Compliance with the Law provision of this Contract; any failure 
by the Contractor to make all reports, payments and withholdings required by federal and state law with respect to social 
security, employee income and other taxes, fees or costs required by the Contractor to conduct business in the State of 
Iowa; any infringement of any copyright, trademark, patent, trade dress, or other intellectual property right; or any failure 
by the Contractor to adhere to the confidentiality provisions of this Contract. 

SECTION 17 IMMUNITY FROM LIABILITY 

Every person who is a party to the Contract is hereby notified and agrees that the State, Lottery, and all of their 
employees, agents, successors, and assigns are immune from liability and suit for Contractor's and subcontractors' 
activities involving third parties arising from the Contract. 

SECTION 18 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

18.1 All Confidential Information provided shall be clearly marked as Confidential Information by the party providing the 
information at the time of disclosure to the other party. The Contractor shall limit such identification to information it 
reasonably believes is entitled to confidential treatment pursuant to the public records provisions of Iowa law. Each party 
shall hold the Confidential Information of the other in strictest confidence and, except as previously authorized in writing 
by the other party, (i) shall use the Confidential Information only in furtherance of this Agreement, (ii) shall not copy 
Confidential Information and (iii) shall not disclose the Confidential Information to any person or entity except those 
employees of the party to whom the information has been disclosed who have a need to know the Confidential 
Information for purposes contemplated by this Agreement. The parties' obligations under this provision do not apply to 
information which: is publicly available or in the public domain when provided; is or becomes publicly available or public 
domain information through no fault of the recipient of the information subsequent to the time it was provided; is rightfully 
communicated to the recipient of the information by another party; is independently developed by the recipient; or is 
disclosed pursuant to law or the order of a court or government authority. The parties' obligations under this provision 
shall survive the conclusion of this Agreement and shall be perpetual. 

18.2 No private or confidential data collected, maintained, or used in the course of performance of the Agreement shall 
be disseminated except as authorized by statute, either during the period of the Agreement or thereafter. Any data 
supplied to Contractor by the Lottery shall be considered the property of the Lottery. 

18.3 Contractor shall use its best efforts to ensure that the details of the project planned by the Lottery are not disclosed 
to persons or organizations other than the personnel, agents, and subcontractors of Contractor whose assistance is 
necessary for the completion of the project. In the event that Contractor receives a request for information or records 
concerning the Lottery, Contractor shall immediately forward the request to the Lottery. 

18.4 In the event Contractor receives a request from a third party (other than a subcontractor working on Contractor's 
Lottery account) for information supplied to Contractor by the Lottery, Contractor shall immediately notify the Lottery of the 
request by telephone and email. Contractor shall not release the information subject to the request without the Lottery's 
permission or pursuant to a court order or as may be required by law. 

18.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in the event a public records request is made to the Lottery 
pursuant to Iowa Code chapter 22 regarding Confidential Information, the Lottery shall notify Contractor as soon as 
possible of the request by telephone and email. The Lottery may respond to the request for information not sooner than 7 
days thereafter with a release of the requested information unless Contractor has obtained an injunction preventing 
release of the requested information. 

SECTION 19 CONTRACTOR ETHICS AND INTEGRITY 

The Contractor is obligated to meet high standards for ethics and integrity under this Contract. The Contractor and 
employees: 

page 17 



a) Shall accept no pay, remuneration, or gratuity of any value for performance on or information derived from this 
project from any party other than the Lottery as described in this Contract, or from any party under contract to the 
Lottery or seeking to contract with the Lottery with respect to this project. 
b) Shall comply with Iowa Code chapter 68B, which contains laws which restrict gifts which may be given or 
received by state employees and requires certain individuals to disclose information concerning their activities 
with state government. The Contractor is responsible for determining the applicability of the chapter to their 
activities and for complying with those requirements. In addition, Iowa Code 722.1 provides that it is a felony 
offense to bribe a public official. 
c) Shall not disclose any business sensitive or confidential information gained by virtue of the Contract to any 
party without the explicit written consent of the Lottery. 
d) Shall take no action in the performance of the Contract to create an unfair, unethical, or illegal competitive 
advantage for itself or others. 
e) Shall not have any financial or personal interests relating to this project (other than the Contract itself) without 
the explicit written consent of the Lottery. 

For violation of the above provisions, the Lottery may terminate this Contract, receive restitution from, debar, or take any 
other appropriate actions against the Contractor. 

SECTION 20 USE OF THIRD PARTIES AND SUBCONTRACTORS 

Contractor may not contract with third parties for the performance of any of Contractor's obligations under this Contract, 
unless and then only to the extent that the Conditions of this Contract specify otherwise. If the Conditions provide for a 
subcontractor or subcontractors, then the following conditions shall apply: 

20.1 All subcontracts shall be subject to prior approval by the Lottery. The Lottery's consent shall not be deemed in 
any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of Lottery in addition to the remuneration agreed upon in this 
Contract. Any subcontract to which Lottery has consented shall be in writing and shall in no way alter the terms and 
conditions of this Contract. 

20.2 The Contractor may enter into subcontracts to complete the work required by this Contract provided that the 
Contractor remains responsible for all services performed under this Contract. No subcontract or delegation of work shall 
relieve or discharge the Contractor from any obligation, provision, or liability under this Contract. The Contractor shall 
remain responsible for such performance and shall be fully responsible and liable for all acts or omissions of any 
subcontractor. 

20.3 All restrictions, obligations and responsibilities of the Contractor under this Contract also shall apply to the 
subcontractors. 

20.4 Lottery shall have the right to request the removal of a subcontractor from the Contract for good cause. The 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lottery and the State from and against any and all claims, 
demands, liabilities, suits, actions, damages, losses, costs and expenses of every kind and nature whatsoever arising as 
a result of Contractor's breach of any subcontract in which it enters, including Contractor's failure to pay any and all 
amounts due by Contractor to any subcontractor. 

20.5 Each subcontract shall contain provisions for Lottery access to the subcontractor's books, documents, and 
records and for inspections of work, as required of Contractor herein. 

20.6 Any action of a subcontractor, which, if done by Contractor, would constitute a breach of this Contract, shall be 
deemed a breach by Contractor and have the same legal effect. 

• 
20.7 If delay results from a subcontractor's conduct, from the Contractor's negligence or fault, or from circumstances 
which by the exercise of reasonable diligence the Contractor should have been able to anticipate or prevent, then the 
Contractor shall be in default and Section 11, "Force Majeure" shall not be applicable. 

20.8 If the Contract is subject to the provisions of Iowa Code chapter BF, then the Contractor shall comply with Iowa 
Code chapter BF with respect to any subcontract Contractor enters into pursuant to this Contract. Any compliance 

page 18 



documentation, including but not limited to certification, received from any subcontractor shall be forwarded to Lottery 
immediately. 

SECTION 21 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

21.1 News Releases. News releases pertaining to the Agreement or the services provided thereunder shall not be made 
without prior written Lottery approval, and then only in accordance with the explicit written instructions from the Lottery. 

21.2 Endorsements. The Contractor will not use any oral or written communication made by any Lottery employee in a 
manner which could be characterized as an endorsement of or advertisement for the Contractor or the Contractor's 
product without the Lottery's prior written consent. 

21.3 Assignment and Delegation. The Contractor shall not assign, transfer, convey, or otherwise dispose of this 
Contract, its duties under this Contract, or any rights, title, or interest in this Contract to any other person, corporation, or 
other entity without the prior written approval of the Lottery and the Lottery Board as required. For purposes of this 
section a transfer or conveyance includes the sale or gift of a five percent (5%) equity interest in the Contractor. 

If the Contractor experiences a "material (substantial) change in its ownership or financial condition" during the term of the 
Contract, the Lottery must be notified in writing at the time the change occurs or is identified. "Material change in 
ownership" is defined as any merger, acquisition, assignment or change in parties who comprise ownership greater than 
five (5) percent of the Contractor or the parent company of the Contractor. "Material change in financial condition' is 
defined as any event which, following Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), would require a disclosure in the 
annual report of a publicly traded United States corporation. The Lottery must be notified in writing of such event. 

21.4 Records Retention and Access. The Contractor shall maintain books, records, and documents which sufficiently 
and properly document and calculate all charges billed to the Lottery throughout the term of this Contract for a period of at 
least three (3) years following the date of final payment, cancellation, expiration or completion of any required audit, 
whichever is later. 

The Contractor shall permit the Auditor of the State of Iowa or any authorized representative of the State or any 
authorized representative of the United States government, to access and examine, audit, excerpt and transcribe any 
directly pertinent books, documents, papers, electronic or optically stored and created records or other records of the 
Contractor relating to orders, invoices or payments or any other documentation or materials pertaining to this Contract, 
wherever such records may be located. The Contractor shall not impose a charge for audit or examination of the 
Contractor's books and records. 

21.5 Choice of Law and Forum. The laws of the State of Iowa shall govern and determine all matters arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement without regard to the choice of law provisions of Iowa law. 

In the event any proceeding of a quasi-judicial or judicial nature is commenced in connection with this Agreement, the 
proceeding shall be brought in Des Moines, Iowa, in Polk County District Court for the State of Iowa, if jurisdiction is 
proper. If however jurisdiction is not proper in the Iowa District Court, Polk County, but is proper only in a United States 
District Court, the matter shall be commenced in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Iowa, Central 
Division. 

This provision shall not be construed as waiving any immunity to suit or liability, in state or federal court, which may be 
available to the Lottery or the State of Iowa. 

21.6 Compliance with the Law and Regulations. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, rules, ordinances, regulations and orders when performing within the scope of this Agreement, including 
without limitation, all laws applicable to the prevention of discrimination in employment. The Contractor must comply with 
the administrative rules of the Iowa Department of Management or the Iowa Civil Rights Commission which pertain to 
equal employment opportunity and laws relating to the use of targeted small businesses as subcontractors or suppliers. 

The Contractor declares that it has complied with all federal, state and local laws regarding business permits and licenses 
that may be required to carry out the work to be performed under this Agreement. 

page 19 



The Lottery may consider the failure of the Contractor to comply with any law or regulation as a material breach of this 
Agreement. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any 
of the aforesaid rules, regulations or requests, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part. 
In addition, the state of Iowa may take such further action, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies 
invoked, as provided by the Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965, as amended, Chapter 216, Code of Iowa, or as otherwise 
provided by law. 

21.7 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Contractor warrants that it has not employed or retained any company 
or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that 
it has not paid or agreed to pay any person or entity, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor, 
any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other consideration on a basis that is contingent upon the award 
of this contract. 

21.8 Cooperation of the Parties. The Contractor and the Lottery agree to cooperate fully, to work in good faith and 
mutually to assist each other in the performance of the Agreement. In this connection, the parties will meet to resolve 
problems associated with the Agreement. Neither party will unreasonably withhold its approval of any act or request of the 
other to which its approval is necessary or desirable. 

21.9 Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. This Agreement is intended 
only to benefit the Lottery and the Contractor. 

21.10 Integration. This Agreement, including all the documents incorporated by reference, represents the entire 
Agreement between the parties and neither party is relying on any representation that may have been made which is not 
included in this Agreement. 

21.11 Headings or Captions. The paragraph headings or captions are for identification purposes only and do not limit 
or construe the contents of the paragraphs. 

21.12 Not a Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or constituting the relationship of a 
partnership, joint venture, (or other association of any kind or agenVprincipal relationship) between the parties hereto. 
Each party shall be deemed an independent contractor contracting for services and acting toward the mutual benefits 
expected to be derived here from. No party, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, has the authority to enter 
into any agreement or create an obligation or liability on behalf of, in the name of, or binding upon another party to this 
Agreement. 

21.13 Supersedes Former Agreements. This Agreement supersedes all prior Agreements between the Lottery and the 
Contractor for the goods and services provided in connection with this Agreement. 

21.14 Notices. 
Any and all notices, designations, consents, offers, acceptances or any other communication provided for herein shall be 
given in writing by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, by receipted hand delivery, by Federal Express, 
courier or other similar and reliable carrier which shall be addressed to each party as set forth as follows provided, 
however, that notice by email may be made where explicitly provided for in this Agreement: 

If to the Iowa Lottery: 

If to the Contractor: 

Iowa Lottery Authority 
Attn.: Larry Loss 
2323 Grand Ave. 
Des Moines, lA 50312 
Email: Lloss@ialottery.com 

QCI 
Attn: Edward A. Koufer 
Address: 1500 NW 118'" Street 
Clive, lA 50325 
Email: ekoufer@qci.com 

page20 



Each such notice shall be deemed to have been provided: 
o At the time it is actually received; or, 
o Within one day in the case of overnight hand delivery, courier or services such as Federal Express 

with guaranteed next day of delivery; or, 
o Within five days after deposited the U.S. Mail in the case of registered U.S. Mail. 

Copies of such notice to each party shall be provided separately. From time to time, the parties may change the name 
and address of a party designated to receive notice. Such change of the designated person shall be in writing to the other 
party and as provided herein. 

21.15 Exclusive and Non-Exclusive Rights. The Contract will not be exclusive. The Lottery will reserve the right to 
contract with other Contractors for related services during the Contract term. 

21.16 Right of Inspection. The Contractor shall allow the Lottery, or anyone specified by the Lottery, to inspect its 
facilities at all reasonable times in order to monitor and evaluate performance or to ensure quality under this Agreement 
subject to Contractor's safety, security and nondisclosure policies and procedures as disclosed to the Lottery. The 
Contractor shall secure a similar right of access for the Lottery from each of its subcontractors or agents providing goods 
or services under this Agreement. 

21.17 Survival of Obligations. Certain obligations imposed on the parties by this Agreement continue beyond the 
expiration, cancellation, or termination of this Agreement as necessary to carry out the intent of the parties. 

Such obligations include, without limitation, each party's obligations to protect the other's Confidential Information, the 
Contractor's obligation to indemnify the Lottery, the Contractor's obligations with respect to the retention of records and 
the maintenance of insurance as well as the Contractor's cooperation during and after a transition period, if a transition 
occurs. 

21.18 Cumulative Rights. The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of either party, provided in this 
Agreement, shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them is exclusive of the others or exclusive of any rights, 
remedies or priorities allowed either party by law. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as affecting, impairing or 
limiting the equitable or legal remedies to which either party may be entitled as a result of any breach of this Agreement. 

21.19 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unenforceable, the invalid portion shall be severed from this Agreement. Such a determination shall not affect the validity 
or enforceability of any other part or provision of this Agreement. 

21.20 Authorization. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that: 
a) It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. 
b) It has taken all requisite action (corporate, statutory, or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation upon itself in 
accordance with its terms. 
c) This Agreement is contingent upon ratification of the Lottery Board pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 99G. The 
Lottery does not warrant that the Agreement will be ratified by the Lottery Board. 

21.21 Successors in Interest. All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Agreement shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns, and legal representatives. 

21.22 Counterparts. The parties agree that this Agreement has been or may be executed in several counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original and all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 

21.23 Additional Provisions. The parties agree that if an Addendum, Exhibit or Schedule is attached hereto by the 
parties and referred to herein, and then the same shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference. 

page 21 



21.24 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The parties agree that they will, from time to time, execute, 
acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such 
further instruments as may reasonably be required for carrying out the expressed intention of this Agreement. 

21.25 Obligations of Joint Entities. If the Contractor is a joint entity, consisting of more than one individual, partnership, 
corporation or other business organization, all such entities shall be jointly and severally liable for carrying out the 
activities and obligations of this agreement and for any default of such activities and obligations. 

21.26 Material Breaches. The references in this Agreement to specific material breaches of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as implying that other breaches of this Agreement are not material. · 

21.27 Title to Lottery Property. Title to all property furnished by the Lottery to the Contractor to facilitate the 
performance of this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the Lottery. 

SECTION 22 EXECUTION 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties have 
entered into the above Agreement and have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement. 

Iowa Lottery Authority QCI 

By: By: 
Name: Larry Loss Name: 
Title: Executive Vice President Title: 

page 22 



Application Security Policy 

Iowa Lottery Authority 
Application Security Policy 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the appropriate level of information security control is 
in place for applications administered by the Iowa Lottery Authority (ILA). 

Expected Agency Outcome: 
It is expected that this policy will provide a uniform method of applying appropriate security 
access to applications throughout the lifecycle of the applications; this includes but is not limited 
to all applications in-house and third-party applications. 

Policy: 
To keep risk at an acceptable level, !LA shall ensure that the proper security controls will be 
implemented for each application. These controls will vary in accordance with the sensitivity and 
criticality of each applicatimi. All information technology application services and systems 
developed or acquired by the Iowa Lottery Authority and administered by the Iowa Lottery 
Authority shall have an application security review. The system developer shall develop security 
specifications throughout the system development or acquisition lifecycle. 

Each new application development project or major application enhancement must address the 
security needed for the effective business operation of the information system. Security controls 
must be an integral part of project planning, development and implementation. Appropriate 
security controls may consist of both software and infrastructure elements. 

Discussion 
A compilation of Jifecycle documentation for the application shall be maintained and available 
for review in order to provide complete information on the application's security aspects. This 
documentation shall include: 
P-IT-S 
12/22/2010 Version 5.0 
http://aatest/lso27001/Shared Ootul'rlent~/Apptoved lottery Po!ldes/Appllcatlon Security Polley v.l.docx 
Created by Jack Schroeder 



• Application design and development 
• Security controls 
• Test plans and results 
• Operations and maintenance documentation 

The phase descriptions below may assist the ILA Security Committee, IT Developers and 
Divisions as they consider security requirements during the planning, design, implementation 
and operations of a new application. Information technology applications require different levels 
of security determined by the information and data sensitivity levels. Please refer to the ILA 
Data Classification Policy. 

P·IT-S 

A. Project concept development, which includes identifying a need and forming an initial 
approach. The following security tasks will be accomplished during this phase: 

• Evaluate the security implications of new or revised application based upon 
security guidelines and the data classification requirements. Please refer to the 
ILA Data Classification Policy. 

• Examine the functionality of the application; use this to determine which level of 
access is required by the system's user groups. 

• Evaluate the application to determine if additional internal controls are required, 
i.e. auditing, logs, etc. 

• Evaluate and document the level of risk to determine the severity of the adverse 
effect that the application could cause as a result of non-evident failures or design 
flaws. This level of risk determination should also consider the data classification 
levels and criticality. 

• All applications shall be designed to meet the least privilege concept. 
• Document the specific project security needs. 

B. Project Requirements, which involve collecting all the specifications that will 
determine the acceptance of the application. Security requirements shall be 
documented. Examples of user requirement statements for security aspects of an 
application may include: 

• Access Requirements 
• General Requirements 
• ITS Security Plan Requirements 
• Change Control Reql)irements 
• Physical Security Requirements 
• Security Banner Requirements 
• Logon ID and Password Requirements 
• Virus Protection Requirements 
• Data Backup Requirements 
• BC/DR Plan Requirements 

12/22/2010 Vei"slon 5.0 
http:/ /aatest/lso27001/Shared Documents/Approved lottery Policies/Application Security Policy v.1.docx 
Created by Jack Schroeder 



P-IT-S 

C. Project Design, which involves planning the various technical components of the 
application (i.e. architecture, database schema, interfaces, etc). During the design 
phase, security is evaluated in terms of the overall functional design specification. The 
information system design specification shall address the way in which the system 
security requirements will be implemented. This may include the following security 
elements as applicable, or reference other documentation for these elements: control 
logic, data structures, error and alarm messages, security measures, supporting 
software (i.e. operating system, drivers, other applications), communication links, 
interfaces, hardware links, special hardware needed, development standards and 
programming standards 

D. Implementation, which involves the building, construction and/or coding of the 
application. This includes unit testing of individual application components. During 
the Implementation phase, a security code review shall be performed by an IT peer. 
Security test plans are constructed. 

I 

E. Testing and Installation before an application is placed into production, user functional 
requirements, security requirements, and established controls shall be verified through 
application testing. This testing shalr determine that (1) user functional requirements 
are validated; (2) the application operates as designed; and (3) internal security 
controls work as intended. Testing shall be comprehensive, consistent, and repeatable 
with the comparison of expected results to actual test results. All anomalies should be 
documented for further review. 

• If applicable, test plans including test scripts and test results shall be documented 
and stored with the application documentation for auditing purposes. 

• Post deployment testing shall be executed based upon approved changes to the 
application (i.e. architecture, database schema, interfaces, etc,). 

F. Training, which includes all activities necessary to prepare the ILA staff to use and 
operate the application. This would normally be expected to occur before access to the 
application is permitted. Training will vary depending on size and scope of the 
application. 

G. Operations, Maintenance, and Retirement, which involves day to day management of 
the application to ensure availability, integrity to meet user needs. This activity also 
includes changes deemed as application enhancements or the acquisition of an 
application from a third party. Retirement involves decommissioning an application 
from the production environment. This phase includes the following security 
requirements: 

• A security evaluation of the application will be performed by the IT department for 
any application enhancements, acquired application or application retirements, to 
ensure ihat the proper security controls remain in place deemed by the ILA Data 
Classification policy. 

12/22/2010 Version 5.0 
http://aatest{tSo27001/Shared Documents/Approved lottery Poficies/Appl!cation Security Policy v.l.docx 
created by Jack Schroeder 



The Developer or Information Guardian shall control access to the application. The access 
request will be sent through the Access Request system by the Department Vice President. 

Scope 
This policy applies to all applications currently under development and all future ILA 
applications developed or acquired after the policy as has been enacted. 

Roles and Responsibilities 
This policy applies to all applications developed and/or administered by the ILA. It is the 
responsibility of ILA Security Committee and Departmental Vice President or their designee to 
enforce this policy. 

• The ILA IT Department shall work with the Department manager to implement application 
security rules to have effective controls over the application. 

• If DAS/ITE manages a ILA Information Technology Services (ITS) environment or 
application, DAS/ITE shall be responsible for implementing the application security controls. 

• If an outsourced contractor manages an !LA environment or application, the !LA Security 
Committee must ensure that the contractor implements the application security controls. 

Definitions: 
• ILA- Iowa Lottery Authority 
• Information Guardian - The person/division that is the holder of the data. 
• BC/DR- Business Continuity I Disaster Recovery 

This policy is approved by the following persons with authorization to do so: 

I 
Terry Rich, CEO 

P-rr~s 

12/22/2010 Version 5.0 

Date 

http://aatestjlso27001/Shared Documents/Approved Lottery PoUcle5/App!icatlon Seeurlty Polley v.l.doc:x 
Created by Jack Schroeder 



Network Security 
Logging and log monitoring 
Security and Operational 

Title: 

Author: 

~pproval Date: 

Effective Date: 
Approval Authority 

Applies To: 

Last Reviewed Date: 

Policy# 

Logging 

ILA IT Security Division 

01112/2011 

01120/2011 
Iowa Lottery CEO 

All ILA employees, partners and contractors 

01/12/2011 

Logging 

For More Information Contact: ILA IT Security Division 
jwolf@ialottery.com 
(515) 725-7860 

. Iowa Lottery Authority 
Logging 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this policy is to provide administrative direction for the development of 
processes that will result in the collection, review and retention of security and 
operational computer logs. 

Expected Agency Outcome: 
It is expected that this policy will ensure the evidence of system changes is collected and 
reviewed for suspicious or unauthorized activity and or user misuse and retained for a 
defined amount of time. 

Policy: 
ILA computer systems and networking equipment will have security/operational logging 
capabilities enabled if possible. The logs will be reviewed by appropriate ILA IT or ILA 
Security personnel qumterly and will be retained for a minimum of six months. 

Scope: 
This policy applies to all employees and authorized third parties who have a legitimate 
business reason to access ILA computer network resources. 

Roles and Responsibilities: 
It is the responsibility of all users of the ILA Network Domain to adhere to this policy. 
Any employee found to have violated this policy may be subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment. 

P-SC-S 
1/7/1 1 Version I 
hllp://aalcst/jso2700 1/Share<I%20Docume01s/f onns/AII Itcms.aspx?Root Folder=%2 fiso2700 I %2 ffiharcd%20Documrols%2 fApproyc 
d%20Loltea%20Policjes%2fPDf%20Versjons&folderCUD=&Vjcll=%7bCZ05C82E%2dBAF0%2d4f4D%2dA5A6%2d0928ECE 
PA5E9%7d 
Created by: John Wolf 



Definitions: 
• ILA - Iowa Lottery Authority 
• Users- All ILA employees, partners, and vendors 
• Logs -Data collected from computer systems networking equipment 
• Security Logs - A security log is used to track security-related information on a 

computer system 
• Operational computer logs - data logs that repott unexpected operational 

anomalies 

• 

Terry Rich, CEO 

/-{2 ~2d2( 
Date 

P-SC-S 
1n111 Version I 

2 
hup://aa!es!ljso2700 I !Shared%20Pocumcn!s/fonns/AIII!cms asp:s?Roo!Folder:%2 fiso2700 I %2 fShared%20Documen!s%2 fi\p!lroye 
d%20l.oUery%20Policjcs%2fPDF%20Versjons&FolrlerCT ID~&Vjcw:%7bC705C82E%2dBi\F0%2d4F4D%2di\5t\6%2d0228ECE 
PA5E9%7d 
Crca!cd by: John Wolf 


